Public Document Pack

AGENDA FOR EU’;W

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Contact:
Direct Line:
E-mail:
Web Site:

Keren Murphy

0161 253 5130
k.m.murphy@bury.gov.uk
www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : T Holt, J Black (Chair), T Cummings,
S Haroon, Kerrison, C Preston, R Skillen, J Harris,
Schofield, Y Wright, M D'Albert and S Nuttall

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control
Committee which will be held as follows:-

Date:

Tuesday, 23 January 2018

Place:

Peel Room, Bury Town Hall

Time:

7.00 pm

Briefing
Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the
related report should be contacted.

The Head of Development Management will brief the
Committee on any changes made to the Planning
Applications since the issue of the Agenda. This
information will be circulated to Members and made
available to the public on the Council’s website on the
day of the meeting.

Notes:

Food will be available from 5.00 pm (Lancaster Room).
Pre-meeting briefing/virtual site visits at 6.00 pm
(Lancaster Room).

Details of Site Visits/Member Training will be circulated
separately for the information of Members and
Officers.




The Agenda and Reports for the meeting are attached.

The Agenda and Reports are available on the Council’s website at
www.bury.gov.uk — Council and Democracy.

Yours sincerely

I

Stephen Kenyon CPFA
Interim Executive Director of Resources and Regulation


http://www.bury.gov.uk/

AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if

so, to formally declare that interest.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19TH DECEMBER, 2017
(Pages 1 - 2)

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 3 - 74)

SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA (Pages 75 - 80)

DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 81 - 90)

A report from the Head of Development Management on recent delegated
planning decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control
Committee.

PLANNING APPEALS (Pages 91 - 102)

A report from the Head of Development Management on recent planning
appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control
Committee.

URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting: 19 December, 2017

Present: Councillor J Black (In the Chair)

Councillors A Cummings, M D’Albert, J Harris, S
Haroon, S Kerrison, T Holt, S Nuttall, I Schofield

and R Skillen

Public attendance: There were no members of the public were in
attendance

Apologies for

absence: Councillors C Preston and Y Wright

PCC.01

PCC.02

PCC.03

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.
MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 21st November, 2017 be
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted in relation to
the applications for planning permission. Supplementary information
was also submitted in relation to planning applications 59984 and
62114.

Delegated decisions:

1. That Approval be given to the following applications in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Head of
Development Management in the report and supplementary
information submitted and subject to the conditions included:

59984 77 Bury Road, Radcliffe, Manchester - Radcliffe
East Ward

Outline — Demolition of existing care home and erection of 13 no.
dwellings

62114 122 Hollins Lane, Bury — Whitefield & Unsworth -
Unsworth Ward

Variation of condition no.2 (approved plans) of planning
permission 60576 for amendment to the red edge site to permit

Page 1



PCC.04

PCC.05

2.

a revised car parking arrangement and relocation of double
garage.

That the Committee be Minded to Approve the following
application in accordance with the reasons put forward by the
Head of Development Management in the report and
supplementary information submitted and subject to the
conditions included:

62046 Land off Factory Street, Ramsbottom, Bury -
Ramsbottom & Tottington — Ramsbottom Ward

Variation of conditions 3,7,8 & 11 of planning permission 59005
to allow demolition of the buildings

DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted listing all

recent Planning application decisions made by Officers using
delegated powers.

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

PLANNING APPEALS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted
listing all recent Planning Appeal decisions since the last meeting of
the Planning Control Committee.

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

CHAIR
COUNCILLOR J Black

(Note: The meeting started at 7.03 pm and ended at 7.12 pm)

Page 2



Agenda Item 4

Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee
On: 23 January 2018

By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: ldentified in each case.
Policy: Identified in each case.
Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:

The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;

The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include
a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, | have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 3



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
Certificates relating to the ownership.

Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
Responses from Consultees.

e

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 4



01 Township Forum - Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley App No. 62007
Location: Land at western end of Watkins Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 ODS
Proposal: Erection of 1 no. new dwelling and two detached garages
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N

Visit:

02 Township Forum - Ward: Bury East App No. 62015
Location: Land at side of 13 Pine Street South, Bury, BL9 7BU
Proposal: Erection of 1 no. attached dwelling
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N

Visit:

03 Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington App No. 62110
Location: Former Hark to Towler PH, 43 Market Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4AA
Proposal: Change of use from public house (Class A4) to 4 no. flats (Class C3)
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N

Visit:

04 Township Forum - Ward: North Manor App No. 62129
Location: Former car park of Masons Arms, Walmersley Old Road, Bury, BL9 6RU
Proposal: Erection of 1 no. dwelling
Recommendation: Minded to Approve Site N

Visit:
05 Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington App No. 62148

Location:
Proposal:

Recommendation:

1 Green Street, Walshaw, Bury, BL8 3BJ
Change of use of land to extend garden/residential curtilage and erection
of detached garage with fence/gate to match existing
Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:

Page 5



Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley Item

Applicant: Mr Wilson

Location: Land at western end of Watkins Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DS
Proposal: Erection of 1 no. new dwelling and two detached garages

Application Ref: 62007/Full Target Date: 01/12/2017
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The site is a long thin section of land to the north of Watkins Drive. The site did contain
trees but these have been cleared recently. The site slopes downwards from Meade Hill
Road (south to north) and Watkins Drive is at a lower level than the properties fronting onto
Sheepfoot Lane (to the north). The site contains tree stumps and grassed areas.

The site is bounded by residential properties to all boundaries.

The proposed development involves the erection of a single detached dwelling with 2
detached garages. The proposed dwelling would be located centrally with a single garage to
the south west and a double garage to the north east.

The proposed buildings would be constructed from red brick with a tile roof. The site would
be accessed from Watkins Drive via 2 driveways, which would serve each of the garages.

Relevant Planning History
None relevant.

Publicity
37 neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 11 October 2017.

10 letters have been received from the occupiers of 33, 34, 35, 36, 38, 43 Sheepfoot Lane,

2, 4 Watkins Drive, 5, 24 Meade Hill Road, which have raised the following issues:

e Object to the construction of a house on the land that separates the back of our house
to Watkins Drive. The house will look out of place and will invade privacy for rear
gardens and the properties on Sheepfoot Lane.

e The proposed workshop would be located in a quiet residential area, where we do not
want noise.

No anti-social behaviour has been seen in this area while | have lived here (since 1994).

o The proposed house will affect property prices on Sheepfoot Lane and the surrounding
area.

e The proposed garage and workshop will cause traffic and congestion problems on
Watkins Drive/Meade Hill Road.

More traffic means more pollution.

e The proposed dwelling and 2 garages is too large for this narrow strip of land.

e The largest windows would be on the side elevations, which would overlook the front of
my property in a way it is not currently.

e The proposed workshop suggests it would be used for business purposes, which would
not be in keeping with the local area.

e The land suffers from poor drainage, which has worsened since the clearing of the large
trees.

e The proposed site plan omits my back gate, which leads onto the land in question.
Access from my garden onto Watkins Drive is a historical feature, which has always
been part of my right of way and | do not want to lose it.

Page 6

01



The stumps were long established trees that the applicant has recently cut down.

There are no root protection areas shown for the existing trees on the drawings provided
and the footprint of the building is very close to these trees.

The amount of development for the site appears to be excessive with 2 garages and 2
driveways.

The proposed garages would be set at 90 degrees from the road, making is seemingly
impossible to drive a car into it using the relatively narrow driveway.

The lack of outdoor space is not visually appealling and should be a requirement of any
application.

The large windows on the front and side elevations would significantly affect our privacy.
There would be a driveway located opposite an existing driveway, which would cause
issues on the narrow road.

Concern about construction vehicles accessing the site without causing disruption and
danger to the residents.

Object to the comment that the site is a 'cleared disused site' as it was a thriving natural
habitat until the trees were removed.

The historic applications quoted are for extensions and not new dwellings and are not
comparable.

We have significant concerns with the aesthetics, practicality, safety and loss of privacy
afforded by the same which are in stark contrast to what was, until recently, a beautiful
woodland area which characterised the estate.

Should some or all of the proposed development be permitted, we request that
significant woodland be reinstated where possible and habitats be renewed.

The neighbouring properties and those who have commented were notified of revised plans
on 21 December 2017.

4 letters have been received from the occupiers of 2, 4 Watkins Drive and 33 Sheepfoot
Lane, which have raised the following issues:

The timescale fo 14 days to comment on revised plans over the Christmas holiday
period is unreasonable.
We still strongly oppose the development proposed.
There has been no mention of the destruction/reinstatement of significant woodland and
natural habitats - a concern raised by multiple households.
The proposal still constitutes over development of a large dwelling, 2 driveways and 2
detached garages. One of the garages is for the use of the applicant and not the
occupier so that the applicant has "a secure place for his cars". The applicant's home
includes a large driveway, with a sheltered area and a garage, which is ample space to
house his car(s) and his caravan (which may we add, is already unsightly). We are
concerned therefore with the practicality of what will inevitably constitute excessive
parking.
We also repeat that the road distance between our home and the proposed
development is inadequate. Again, this calls into question not only regulation but also
functionality, practicality and safety. We refer to our previous comments regarding
parking and driving and our comments below regarding the 2.4 m set back.
We are also concerned with the proposed side gardens and the extent to which these
will be visible, particularly when in being used as a substitute for a typical back garden.
We strongly believe that the site does not lend itself to reasonable residential
development and indeed the proposed development in question.The applicant admits
for example that the "constraints" of the site do not allow for the common practice
orientation of garages or a conventional / any back garden. Other significant areas such
as layout, design, functionality are being compromised because of the constraints of the
site, to the detriment of the residents around the vicinity. Further, the required 2.4 m set
back is not possible as it would "render the front garden useless, adversely affect the
amenity space for the house and cause conflict between the private land and public
pavement". In other words, the standard requirement for a residential development are
not possible because of the site constraints.
My previous objections still stand.

Page 7



¢ From what | can understand from the additional info suggests my trees will be 'retained
& protected'. The trees are of great beauty to me providing a screen from noise, privacy
and pollution ( which will increase thanks to the 4 cars that are now to be parked at the
very back of my property).

¢ My family have enjoyed access out of the back of the property for over 17 years. This
application completely cuts this off and there seems to be no offer to create a path onto
Watkins drive or any other concession that might lessen the impact and change on my
property.

¢ Finally I still have concerns about any drainage system whereby any faults or blocks
could back up and affect my property.

e Adverse impact upon my property price.

e The guidelines state that a minimum of 20 metres separation is required, yet the plans
state that 16 metres is acceptable for oblique separation. Also, the distance to 2 Watkins
Drive has not been considered as there is 14.22 metres from the corner of No. 2
Watkins Drive to the far pavement, which would impact upon privacy.

e The proposed development would affect the trees and would impact upon the root
protection area.

e Were any of the trees that have been chopped down, protected, given their size?

e Is an electric vehicle charging point necessary for a development of this size? It would
not be aesthetically in keeping with the estate.

e The level of parking should be reduced as the current housing on the street opposite the
development all have single garages with a driveway in front, including 2 Watkins Drive
which is directly opposite; and is a similar size if not larger than the proposed house.
Therefore a single garage with drive seems the appropriate amount to match with the
existing housing on the street. Therefore we would ask that the double garage is
removed from the plans. Therefore this parking is clearly excessive and unnecessary as
every other house on the street manages with a single garage and driveway.

e Are the visibility splays possible? If not, the development would not be safe for
occupiers, pedestrians and road users.

The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Consultations

Traffic Section - Further comments on the revised plans to be reported in the
Supplementary Report.

Drainage Section - No response.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land & Air Quality - No objections, subject to the
inclusion of conditions relating to contaminated land and proposals to mitigate the impact
upon local air quality.

Waste Management - No response.

United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and
surface water drainage.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

H1/2 Further Housing Development
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development

EN1/1 Visual Amenity

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN1/3 Landscaping Provision

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/5 Waste Water Management

ENB8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Page 8



Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle (Residential) - The National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a
material planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to
boost the supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term.
There is a particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a
rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land.

Bury’s Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply
position, which is made up with sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as
many sites will take longer than fives years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g.
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential developments.

Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity,
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses.

The proposed development is located within the urban area and there are residential
dwellings surrounding the site. As such, the proposed development would not conflict with
the surrounding land uses. Appropriate infrastructure would be available and as such, the
proposed development would be acceptable in principle. Therefore, the proposed
development would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development
Plan and the NPPF.

Design and layout - The proposed development would provide a single detached dwelling
with 2 detached garages. The site slopes from south to north and a series of level plateaus
would be provided for the detached garages and dwelling. The proposed dwelling would be
two storeys in height and would be 1.4 metres lower than the gardens to the residential
properties to the north on Sheefoot Lane. The proposed dwelling and detached garages
would be construicted from red brick with a tile roof, which would match the surrounding
properties. The proposed development would reflect the design of the surrounding
properties and the use of headers, cills and canopies would add interest to the elevations.
As such, the proposed development would not be a prominent feature within the
streetscene.

Whilst unconventional, the private amenity space for the proposed dwelling would be split
into 2 areas and when combined would be acceptable in terms of size. There would be
space within the gardens or garages for bin storage. There would be a 1.4 metre high
retaining wall along the rear elevation with a 1.8 metre high timber boarded fence above,
which would match the surrounding fencing. To the front elevation, there would be a 1 metre
high brick wall and 0.5 metre high railings above and 1.5 metre high timber gates, which
would be acceptable in the locality. The proposed site plan indicates that a number of trees
would be planted along the western boundary, which would be welcomed. Therefore, the
proposed development would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene and would be in

Page 9



accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Impact upon residential amenity - SPD 6 provides guidance on aspect standards
between residential properties and would be relevant in this case. There should be a
minimum of 20 metres between directly facing habitable room windows, which is based
upon a two storey development. A habitable room window is a lounge, dining room or
bedroom.

The windows on the rear elevation would be at a high level or would be obscure glazed.
There would be in excess of 13 metres between the properties on Sheepfoot Lane and the
rear elevation and the proposed development would not lead to a significant loss of light or
privacy.

There are ground floor habitable room windows on the southern elevation and the proposed
fencing and landscaping would prevent any overlooking or loss of privacy.

The proposed development includes 2 windows at first floor level in the southern elevation
of the dwelling. However, these windows would be secondary to the main windows in the
northern and eastern elevations. The proposed opening would relate to bedroom 1, which
has a principle window on the northern elevation, which would look down the garden. In
addition, there would be 16 metres from the window in the southern elevation to No. 5
Meade Hill Road and the relationship would be oblique. As such, the proposed development
would not have a significantly adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring
properties.

There would be 14.3 metres from the front of No. 2 Watkins Drive and the garden and
driveway for the proposed dwelling. The proposed dwelling would be located so as to have
a direct relationship with the side garden to No. 2 Watkins Drive and not the dwelling. As
such, the distance of 14.3 metres would be in excess of the 7 metre requirement between
first floor habitable room windows and a directly facing boundary with a neighbouring
property from SPD6. As such, the proposed development would not have an adverse
impact upon the amenity of the niehgbouring properties.

Trees - There are a number of trees along the northern boundary of the site, which are
located in the gardens to Nos 34 and 36 Sheepfoot Lane. The applicant has undertaken a
tree survey, which indicates that all trees are to be retained and protected during the
implementation of the development. The proposed site plan indicates that additional trees
would be planted as part of the landscaping. As such, the proposed development would not
harm the character of the area and would be in accordance with Policy EN8 of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

Highways issues - The proposed development would be accessed from Watkins Drive
from 2 driveways. The agent has submitted revised plans detailing the boundary treatment,
tracking details and visibility splays, which are currently being assessed. The Traffic Section
will provide further comments in the Supplementary Report.

Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum number of parking spaces is 3 spaces per 4 bed
dwelling.

The proposed development would provide 3 spaces on 2 driveways and a single and double
garage. SPD11 makes it clear that garages are not counted when assessing parking
provision as most are predominantly used for storage and as such, the applicant could
storea vehicle in the garage without impacting upon the parking arrangements for the
proposed dwelling. Therefore, the provision of 3 spaces on the driveways would comply with
the maximum parking standards.

As such, the proposed development would comply with the maximum parking standards
and would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and
SPD11.

Page 10



Response to objectors

e The issues relating to property prices and access from neighbouring properties into the
site are not material planning considerations and cannot be taken into account.

e The issues relating to privacy, overlooking, design, scale of development, amount of
outdoor space, landscaping, highways issues and car parking have been addressed in
the report above.

o The applicant has confirmed that there will not be a workshop on the site and this
building will be used as a domestic garage. The proposed development would not be
used for business use.

e United Utilities have confirmed that there are no objections to the proposal, subject to
the inclusion of conditions relating to drainage.

e Arevised plan showing tree protection areas has been submitted and a condition
relating to tree protection measures has been added.

e The trees that were removed were not protected and were not located within a
conservation area. As such, planning consent was not required for their removal.
However, the applicant has confirmed that additional planting will take place and this
would be the subject of a condition relating to landscaping.

¢ United Utilities have confirmed that they have no objections, subject to the inclusion of
conditions relating to foul and surface water drainage.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 1383-PL0O1A, 1383-PL02A,
1383-PLO3A, 1383-PL04A, 1383-PL05, 1383-PL06, 1383-PL07, 11651/1,
SCP/17511/ATRO1, SCP/17511/F01, CW/8958-P-TC and the development shall
not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations,
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development
is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the
construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

4. No development shall commence unless and until:-
Page 11



e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

e Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

¢ Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination

and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory

development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework

Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft
landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and
suitability for use on site. Proposals for contamination testing including testing
schedules, sampling frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as
determined by appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
any soil or soil forming materials being brought onto site, and;

The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory
evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc) submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development
being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

All instances of contamination encountered during the development works which
do not form part of an approved Remediation Strategy shall be reported to the
Local Planning Authority (LPA) immediately and the following shall be carried out
where appropriate:

e Any further investigation, risk assessment, remedial and / or protective works
shall be carried out to agreed timescales and be approved by the LPA in
writing;

e A Site Verification Report detailing the conclusions and actions taken at each
stage of the works including validation works shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the LPA prior to the development being brought into
use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human

health and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy

Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Page 12



10.

11.

12.

13.

Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

Reason. To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and
pollution pursuant to Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water Management of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

Prior to the commencement of the development a sustainable drainage
management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan shall include as a
minimum:

e The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory
undertaker, or, management and maintenance by a Resident's Management
Company; and

e Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing
maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including
mechanical components) and will include elements such as ongoing
inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments,
operation costs, regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular
maintenance caused by less sustainable limited life assets or any other
arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme
throughout its lifetime.

The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in

accordance with the approved plan.

Reason. To manage flooding and pollution and to ensure that a managing body is

in place for the sustainable drainage system and there is funding and maintenance

mechanism for the lifetime of the development pursuant to Policy EN5/1 - New

Development and Flood Risk and Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water Management of the

Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 10 of the National Planning Policy

Framework.

All trees to be retained on and adjacent to the site shall be protected in
accordance with BS 5837:2012 "Trees in relation to design, demolition and
construction". The development shall not commence unless and until the
measures required by the British Standard are implemented and all measures
required shall remain in situ until the development has been completed.

Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 — Woodland and Tree
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

A landscaping scheme, including details of replacement tree planting, shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of the development. It shall be implemented not later than 12
months from the date the building(s) is first occupied; and any trees or shrubs
removed, dying or becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased
within five years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or
species to those originally required to be planted to the written satisfaction of the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2
— Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated
and made available for use prior to the dwelling hereby approved being brought
into use.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Notwithstanding the terms of I‘ghe Tolvgn and Country Planning (General Permitted
age



Development) (England) Order 2015, as subsequently amended, no development
shall be carried out within the terms of Classes A to G of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of
the Order, without the submission and approval of a relevant planning application.
Reason. To ensure that future inappropriate alterations or extensions do not occur
pursuant to policies of the Unitary Development Plan.

14. The driveways indicated on the approved plans, shall only be surfaced with a
permeable material.
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity and drainage pursuant to Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built
Design, Policy EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree Planting and Policy EN7/5 - Waste
Water Management of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253
5322

Page 14



Viewpoints

[T]

NN

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN
APP. NO 62007 J

ADDRESS: Land at western end of Watkins Drive
Prestwich

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 15




62007
Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 16



Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 17



.

2020

+ 026
cl® s

ald

\;\\,25'?"“ +

!
2
%

0005
16.02

Existing Garden
FFL 19.60
Approx

A8~

o
20.38 20%

Proposed Roof Plan

19.11.17 Revision A: amendments in line with site plan;
drawing renamed as roof plan for clarity

HIGH PEAK ARCHITECTS LTD

2nd Floor, Wharf House, Wharf Road, Whaley Bridge, High Peak, Derbys SK23 7AD
Tel: 01663 719717  Website: highpeakarch.com  Email: hpa@highpeakarch.com

Proposed House & Garages Proposed Roof Plan
Watkins Drive, Prestwich 1383 PLO2A

P 1
age 18 Scale: 1:200 @ A1 Date: September 2017 DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING Rev:A




20m hab to hab. (0 degrees)
CL m | ,:.':,'::.' /

%, ‘
8y )‘ | Q
) c | ‘

EL 26.25 1=

18140 approx. level

Privacy Rlanting
Landscape ArcHitect to prqvide/final layout

boundary treatment 1 to rear

A ]
7500 7000 1500 11250 5000 | 7000 6500
Upper S “
o
Garden | Single N A House » Lower Double
Garage 1 ' ' : .+ Garden ' ' Garage

' Soft Landscaping "|
Landscape Architect to provide final layout

Hard Landscaping
Landscape Architect to provide final layout

I\

4000 boundary treatment 2 to front 4000

boundary treatment 2 to front
& Q 8
area of proposed crossover on pavement area of proposed crossover on pavement
dropped kerb and contimued pavement B C v dropped kerb and contimued pavement

4
Watkins Drive @

Ground Floor Plan with Garages 1:100

Boundary Treatment Key

Type 1.
1.8 - 2m high close boarded timber fence to rear

Type 2
1m high brick wall with 0.5m railings above to front

Type 3
1.5m high timber gate to drives

19.11.17 Revision A: information shown requested by planners

= I HIGH PEAK ARCHITECTS LTD
4
= 2nd Floor, Wharf House, Wharf Road, Whaley Bridge, High Peak, Derbys SK23 7AD
. Tel: 01663 719717  Website: highpeakarch.com  Email: hpa@highpeakarch.com

Proposed House & Garages Site Plan and Boundaries

Watkins Drive, Prestwich 1383 PLO3

P 1
age 19 Scale: 1:100 @ A1 Date: September 2017 DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING Rev: A




goo

il

=

|

|

]

Front Elevation (South East)

Ridge line of 5 Meade Hill Road

|| Eaves line of 5 Meade Hill Road

Streetscape Elevation to Watkins Drive

Room 4

FFL +2700

Reception / Dining /

Lounge

Under
Stair
Storage

GFL 18140

Section AA

Single Garage

North East South East

South West North West

South West

Page 20

North West

North East

RI+7075 -..RI+7075 . e RIET075 RIE7075
l”é“‘ ”’é\“‘ @ IQ f:ar:, tunnels to
~ = ~ g
%‘ % obscured glass
Ffl +2700 Ffl +2700 Ffl_+2700 - | Ffl.+2700
19500 approx level of garden % 19500 approx level of garden
= [
"""" | .
Side Elevation (South West) Side Elevation (North East) Rear Elevation (North West)
Ridge line of 5 Meade Hill Road
\\\\ Eaves line of 5 Meade Hill Road
House RI+7075
gog
Single Garage
7T 0 0 T
! L Double Garage
fence line to rear
Fil +2700 |
possible retaining wall to rear =
top of wall at height of gardens behind %‘ m g % %‘
L = Gfl 18140
Ridge line of 5 Meade Hill Road
I
|
I
I
1
[ Eaves line of 5 Meade Hill Road
Bl+7075..... Rl+7075...... e BIETO7S
Loft Space
with sun tunnels
to rear
300mm width retaining wall to % 300mm width retaining wall to
height of neighbouring gardens — T~ | height of neighbouring gardens
Bathroom =
____________ Fl £2700_. o FlL£2700 F£2700 a
19500 approx level of garden Reception / % 19500 approx level of garden
Study —
1ok | UM | I | I | N | E— | —  — Gfl.18140.. ...Gfl.18140
Section BB Section CC
Double Garage
8 3 = =
— =K g g g
— — N Y ]

South East

Proposed House & Garages

Watkins Drive, Prestwich

Scale: 1:100 @ A1

Date: September 2017

19.11.17 Revision A: retaining wall height shown and amended
south western elevation shown

HIGH PEAK ARCHITECTS LTD

2nd Floor, Wharf House, Wharf Road, Whaley Bridge, High Peak, Derbys SK23 7AD

Tel: 01663 719717  Website: highpeakarch.com  Email: hpa@highpeakarch.com

Elevations & Sections
1383 _PLO4A

DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING Rev: A




4325

Utility /
Boots

low level window

GFL 18140

Kitck

final I3
to cliel

Cloaks

en

yout breakfast bar
hts choice

low level window

LN 7N /N

Shelving /
Storage

Dining
N
Lounge

1200

.......................

.......................

11250

j

6600

Ground Floor Plan 1:50

Page 21

CL

50m hab to hab. (0 degrees)

RGN

Y 0

%

40

obscured
glass

entrance

canopy
below

——
B
Ensuite - Bed 2
I| 1
15IVE
Bed 3 — -
1 1
Bed 4 A
[—| g l‘
[ ]

First Floor Plan 1:50

Proposed House & Garages

L
I}

Watkins Drive, Prestwich

Scale: 1:50 @ A1 Date: December 2017

@l/
HIGH PEAK ARCHITECTS LTD

2nd Floor, Wharf House, Wharf Road, Whaley Bridge, High Peak, Derbys SK23 7AD
Tel: 01663 719717  Website: highpeakarch.com  Email: hpa@highpeakarch.com

Proposed House Floor Plans
1383 _PL0O5

DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING Rev:




SCALE 1:250

“ 5 Meade Hill Road |

IS

SEE INSET 1

T3

existing
goarded Fence as SXIS —_—
<o Boarded —

© crown Copyright, All Rights Reserved. 2017 Licence Number 0100031673

— - — /\
1800mm Close Boarded Fence to match e)ﬂslln-] - —- \% \/
Upper S}nglé - L Drive Lower
Garden Garage Garden I
7500 7000 S 5000 7000
a )
1350mm gates to match A 1350mm gates to matfh I
front boundary treatment front boundary treatmilint
i
) |
- - e M | I
— — —
e s e — mm high brick wall with 0
5] area of proposed 450mm high railings above area of proposed J
S = pavement crossover on pavement to front boundary pavement crossover on pavement e e e -
dropped kerb B dropped kerb o
and contimued pavement Watkins Drive and contimued pavement
25000 -

Jaguar S-Type
Ov%rall LenyFt)h
Overall Widf
Overall Body Height

Min Body Ground Clearance

Max Track Width
Lock to Lock Time

Kerb to Kerb Turning Radius

INSET 1 - ACCESS

ns
03

INSET 2 - ACCESS

S Y

INSET 1 - EGRESS

INSET 2 - EGRESS

N :‘ .

SC

Transportation Planning : Infrastructure Design

Colwyn Chambers, 19 York Street, Manchester, M2 3BA, Tel 0161 832 4400,
www.scptransport.co.uk, Email inffo@scptransport.co.uk

Client
MR ALAN WILSON

Drawing Title

Project Title

WATKINS DRIVE, PRESTWICH

SWEPT PATH ANALYSIS

LARGE CAR
Page 22

e 1:500 @ A3 o WD Rev Description Date | By Prawing No-
UNLESS SHOWN
_ |- _ [-| SCP/17511/ATRO1
Date Checked -
11.12.2017 MD - —
Approved/ Status -z _ _ |Revision
Unapproved _ PLANNING —1- - - _




2.0 x 2.0m PEDESTRIAN

2.0 x 2.0m PEDESTRIAN

© Crown Copyright;“All Rights/Reserved. 2017 Licence Number 0100031673

VISIBILITY SPLAY VISIBILITY SPLAY A
2.0 x VISIBILITY SPLAY
TO TANGENT OF KERB AN
71\; \/ ) ‘\
___________ T T —— - — . smaorpmeses | 2.0 x 33m
""""""""" = VISIBILITY SPLAY
2.0x 26
VISIBILITY SPLAY VISIBILITY SPLAY
Client Drawing Title Scale By o Drawing No.
MR ALAN WILSON 1:250 @ A3 WD Rev Description Date | By
ST — — _ - | SCP/17511/F01
VISIBILITY SPLAYS 11.12.2017 MD BE _ |-
WATKINS DRIVE, PRESTWICH — Rovioon
Transportation Planning : Infrastructure Design Gpproved/ g Status T - - -
Page 23 napprove - PLANNING [_[= 1 -




Ward: Bury East ltem

Applicant: Eagles Estate LTD

Location: Land at side of 13 Pine Street South, Bury, BL9 7BU

Proposal: Erection of 1 no. attached dwelling

Application Ref: 62015/Full Target Date: 18/12/2017
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application relates to a vacant strip of land adjacent to 13 Pine Street South. The
immediate area is characterised by residential properties, with rows of terraced properties to
the south, west and north and semi detached properties to the east. The site has been
previously occupied by a terraced dwelling that appears to have been demolished in the
1980s.

Planning permission is sought for the construction of a single attached dwelling at the end of
a row of terraces. The proposed dwelling would project approximately 4590mm from the
side elevation of the adjacent property, with the principal front and rear elevations running
flush with the front and rear of this dwelling. To the rear it is proposed to construct a single
storey element, that would project approximately 3 metres with an area of private residential
amenity space provided within an enclosed rear yard. A box dormer is also proposed to the
rear.

Relevant Planning History
None

Publicity

Neighbour letters sent to 21 properties on the 24th October 2017. 5 letters of objection
received from the occupiers of 31 Holly Street, 13 Pine Street, 30 Pine Street, 7
Brandlesholme Road and a Petition with 21 Signatures raising concerns with regards to:
o loss of light

loss of property value

bungalow would have less impact on light

no car parking available and already a busy road

cars use road to cut through between Wash Lane and Rochdale Road

windows within side of property look directly into kitchen of 31 Holly Street

loss of privacy

loss of natural wildlife habitat

blocking of access and egress

telephone junction at front space of land - relocation would lead to disruption to
telephone and broadband services

o will it be a residential building?

e additional noise

Following receipt of amended plans further neighbour letters sent 17th November 2017. 2
further objections received from the occupiers of 30 Pine Street with concerns regarding:
e Amended plans do not address concerns and will still block light
e car parking for number of people has not been addressed
¢ would have no concerns if a bungalow were erected
e can a garage to the rear be considered?

Page 24

02



Following the receipt of further amendments neigbour letters sent on the 21st December
2017. 1 Further objection received from the occupier of 30 Pine Street:

e 3 storey house will block light

e not been a property on site since No. 30 was built in 1986

e volume of car parking

Consultations

Traffic Section - No objection subject to conditions requiring a method statement for the
delivery and storage of materials, reinstatement of all footways abutting the site, the
restriction of the ground floor windows to inward opening, and prevention the foundations for
encroaching under the adopted highway.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objection subject to conditions in
relation to a contaminated land preliminary risk assessment and implementation of a
remediation strategy, imported materials and unforeseen contamination.

Waste Management - No comments received.
United Utilities (Water and waste) - No comments received.
Borough Engineer - Drainage Section - No comments received.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development

H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
H2/3 Extensions and Alterations

H1/2 Further Housing Development

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policy
Policy H2/1- The Form of New Residential Development requires all new residential
development to make a positive contribution to the form and quality of the surrounding area.

Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design seeks to ensure that any proposals would not
have an adverse impact on the particular character and townscape of an area.

Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development seeks to ensure that new
residential development will be acceptable in terms of layout in order to provide a good
quality residential environment.

Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development requires all applications for development
to make adequate provision for their car parking and servicing requirements.

Policy H1/2 - Further Housing Development requires the Council to have regard for the
suitability of proposals for housing development on sites not identified on the Proposals
Map.

Page 25



Principle

The National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material planning
consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the supply
of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year
supply of deliverable housing land.

Bury’s Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply
position, which is made up with sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as
many sites will take longer than fives years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g.
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential developments.

Taking into consideration that the site is located within an established residential area, and
a dwelling was located on the site until the 1980s the principle of a new house on the site is
considered to be acceptable in terms UDP Policies H1/2 Further Housing Development and
H1/2 - Further Housing Development.

Visual amenity

The proposed house would, next to the existing terrace, appear as an end terrace of similar
proportions to the adjacent dwellings. It would be modest in scale and finished in render and
slate to match a number of the surrounding terraces. The proposed window and door
openings to front and rear would be suitably aligned, and replicate the style and form of the
attached building. The proposed dwelling is considered to be in keeping with the site and
surroundings.

In this instance therefore the proposal is acceptable in terms of visual amenity and complies
with UDP Policies H2/1- The Form of New Residential Development, EN1/2 -Policy EN1/2 -
Townscape and Built Design and H2/2 - Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development.

Residential Amenity

There are no adopted aspect standards for new build residential properties however,
Supplementary Planning Document 6 provides guidance on aspect standards between
residential properties and as such, would be a reasonable guide in this case.

SPD 6 requires a distance of 20 metres between directly facing habitable room windows.

A distance of approximately 19.4 metres can be achieved between the proposed rear first
floor bedroom windows and the rear elevation of No. 4 Ash Street. A distance of
approximately 19.9 metres between the rear first floor dormer windows and the rear
elevation of No. 4 Ash Street can be achieved. Whilst this distance is slightly below the
aspect standards required, SPD 6 does state that "in a terraced street, where current aspect
standards are not available, the existing distances between habitable room windows will be
maintained as a minimum." Taking into consideration that the proposal maintains existing
distances between dwellings within the terraces, and the fact that the terraces in these rows
could construct a similar dormer window under permitted development rights, in this
instance the proposal is considered to be acceptable.

The rear ground floor window relates to a non-habitable room (kitchen) and as such aspect
standards to not apply. In addition to this the window to this room would be screened by the
proposed 2 metre boundary wall which extends above eyeline when viewed from within the
proposed kitchen. In this instance therefore the proposed rear kitchen windows are
considered to be acceptable.

Page 26



As with the rear windows, the distance between the front habitable room windows and the
directly facing property at No. 30 Pine Street South falls below the 20 metres required within
SPD 6. The distance achievable is approximately 18.6 metres. Again, taking into
consideration that the proposal maintains existing distances between dwellings within the
terraces in this instance the proposal is considered to be acceptable.

The proposed first floor, and second floor side windows relate to non-habitable rooms and
as such a condition should be attached to ensure these windows are obscure glazed to
prevent any possible overlooking of the dwellings on Holly Street.

The proposed side ground floor window relates to a dining room and faces towards the rear
elevations, and yards of the dwellings on Holly Street. The ground floor windows of these
properties appear to relate to kitchens, which are non habitable rooms and as such are not
protected under policy in the same way habitable room windows area. The rear residential
amenity spaces of these properties are also depicted by walls and gates that reach a height
of approximately 2 metres providing adequate screening. In this instance therefore it is
considered that the proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the privacy of the
dwellings on Holly Street.

SPD 6 requires a distance of 13 metres between ground floor habitable room windows, and
a two storey elevations. Whilst the ground floor windows of the dwellings on Holly Street are
not habitable room windows they are the main windows to the rear of these properties and
as such aspect standards have still been applied. A distance of approximately 14.6 metres
can be achieved which exceeds aspect standards and as such it is considered that the
proposal would not have an overbearing impact on these properties.

Concerns have been raised by the occupiers of No. 30 Pine Street in relation to loss of light
due to the construction of a three storey property. The proposed dwelling would be no
higher than the adjoining terrace and as such aspect standards would require a distance of
13 metres between the proposed elevations, and the main aspects of any directly facing
properties. A distance of approximately 19.4 metres can be provided between the proposed
dwelling and the rear of No. 4 Ash Street, and a distance of approximatealy 18.6 metres can
be provided between the proposed dwelling and the front of No. 30 Pine Street. These
distances exceed the required aspect standards and as such the proposal complies with
guidance.

In this instance it is considered that the proposal complies with UDP Policy H2/1- The Form
of New Residential Development.

Highways

No objection has been raised in relation to the proposal from the Traffic Section subject to a
condition being attached in relation to remedial works required to the adopted highway. The
proposal would be located within an established residential area with on street parking
available for residents, which the proposal site intends to utilise. The site is located within a
sustainable location with links to public transport. In this instance it is considered given the
nature of the existing parking provision in the area the proposal is acceptable.

Neighbour Objections
It is considered that that the concerns raised in relation to residential amenity and parking
have been addressed within the main body of the report.

Loss of property value and matters controlled under non-planning legislation are
non-material planning considerations not relevant to the decision.

The proposal site does not fall within ancient woodland, an SBI, a great crested newt search
area, nature reserve, SSSI or have any TPOs. It is therefore considered that further
ecological surveys would not be required for this scale of development within an established
residential area.

Page 27



Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered SHT 1 of 6, SHT 2 of 6 Revision C,
SHT 2a of 6 Revision D, SHT 3 of 6, SHT 4 of 6 Revision A, SHT 5 of 6 Revision
D, SHT 5a of 6 Revision D, SHT 6 of 6 Revision D as modified by the email from
Rashid Mehmood dated 8th January 2018 and the topographical survey received
on the 21st December 2017. The development shall not be carried out except in
accordance with the details hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. Details/Samples of the materials to be used in the external elevations, together
with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is
commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used for the construction of the
development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

4. Before the first occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted the first floor and
second floor side windows shall be fitted with obscured glazing and shall be
permanently retained in that condition thereafter.

Reason. To protect the privacy of adjoining occupiers and to accord with Policy
H2/3 - Extensions and Alterations of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and
Supplementary Planning Document 6 - Alterations and Extensions to Residential
Properties.

5. No development shall commence unless and until full details of the following have
been submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority:

e Submission of a method statement to cover the delivery and storage of
materials and all works abutting the adopted highway, including the provision,
where necessary, of safe temporary scaffolding arrangements and associated
traffic management measures on Back Holly Street

e The reinstatement of all footways abutting the site affected by the construction
of the proposed dwelling and as a result of statutory undertakers connections
to the dwelling to a scope and specification to be agree, retention/replacement
of the edgings the demarcate the limits of the adopted highway and all
associated highway remedial works.

Page 28



The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an approved
specification and programme.

Reason.To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway
safety, and ensure the integrity of the adopted highway is maintained, in the
interests of highway safety.

No development shall commence unless and until:-

e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

¢ Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

e Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination

and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory

development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework

Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 6 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft
landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and
suitability for use on site. Proposals for contamination testing including testing
schedules, sampling frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as
determined by appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
any soil or soil forming materials being brought onto site, and;

The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory
evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc) submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development
being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Page 29



All instances of contamination encountered during the development works which
do not form part of an approved Remediation Strategy shall be reported to the
Local Planning Authority (LPA) immediately and the following shall be carried out
where appropriate:

e Any further investigation, risk assessment, remedial and / or protective works
shall be carried out to agreed timescales and be approved by the LPA in
writing;

e A Site Verification Report detailing the conclusions and actions taken at each
stage of the works including validation works shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the LPA prior to the development being brought into
use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human

health and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy
Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Goldsbrough on 0161 253

5277

Page 30



Viewpoints

-_—
-

sing Home

~

Alexander

/ Nur:

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

APP. NO 62015

ADDRESS: Land At Side Of 13 Pine Street South

Bury

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 31




62015
Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 32



Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 33



€ abed

Bituminous surface Back street

Bituminous surface footpath

§
5
(Z]
g
o
£
g
S
Q

L

Existing wooden fence

Partially brick pavement

Telegraph Pole

Existing side wall of House no 13

Bituminous surface footpath

Bituminous surface Back street

Site

soft Soil under the bushes

Existing Front boundary wall

+

r_TeIegraph Distribution box

PINE STREET SOUTH Bituminous surface

This drawing is the property of IPS Architects and
copyright is reserved by them.

This drawing is not to be copied or disclosed by or to
any unauthorized person without the prior written
consent of IPS Architects.

Do not scale from this drawing.

All dimensions are to be checked on site prior to
construction, manufacture of any components and
ordering of materials and equipment.

Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architects
for clarification.

All materials and workmanship to be accordance with
the current British Standards and codes of practice.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all
relevant Architectural Structural Engineers,
Mechanical Engineers, Electrical Engineers and
Specialists drawings and specifications.

IPS

DESIGN

2 York Street
Bury
Lancashire

BL9 7AR

Existing site plan

of 11 Pine Street Bury BL9 7BU

Scale :1: 100 on A3
Ref: IPS/R/11/BL97BU

All Dimensions in Meters

Date : 12/09/2017

Revision B | C|

A

SHT 2 of 6

Existing




Ge abed

This drawing is the property of IPS Architects and
copyright is reserved by them.

This drawing is not to be copied or disclosed by or to
any unauthorized person without the prior written
consent of IPS Architects.

Do not scale from this drawing.
All dimensions are to be checked on site prior to
construction, manufacture of any components and

ordering of materials and equipment.

Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architects
for clarification.

—
% é All materials and workmanship to be accordance with
Q the current British Standards and codes of practice.
% ﬁ—'.r Existing side wall of House no 13 Existing Front boundary wall g
¢ = ) This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all
Q =+ B o relevant Architectural Structural Engineers,
g = © Mechanical Engineers, Electrical Engineers and
o § g = Specialists drawings and specifications.
o -
Q < / % T = 8
£ g [l @ g
5 8 0= i ) )
7 = - Z5 ] ] 2
3 @ >0 — < ° (@)
] £ 5 -= 2 A c
3 ? 2 | E z |J —
o 2 P < . o] E
c 35 > x 5
= o 24
S £ g - - £
= 3 ¢ — m
o @ /
o
Tuiglfzuig [feuig | yuig j ‘ N
T_ Bituminous surface footpath D
Telegraph Pole O
Bituminous surface Back street v
N
E
Wi
S

2 York Street
. . . I P S Bury
- The application Site - = Lancashire
DESIGN BL9 7AR
Proposed site plan
of 11 Pine Street Bury BL9 7BU

Scale :1 : 100 on A3 | All Dimensions in Meters
Ref:: IPS/R/11/BL97BU Date : 12/09/2017

D |
SHT 2a of 6 Proposal

Revision | a B




Proposed Front Elevation

sy
ﬂ/\ C@D(
i ===
[ i
i T
KITCHEN ool (I

Rain Water Drainagej—|
2nd.F.L Rain Water Drainage—s{ ond.F.L
F.F.L F.F.L
T~
I:l I:I "T~Rain Water Drainage
H=% Rain Water Drainage—s{ D
G.FL G.F.L

Proposed Rear Elevation

I\H
N Ts==

@ BEDROOM
it I o
N Down -

LIVING []
ROOM

ATHROOM

7

BEDROOM

L/

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

— lj

Proposed First Floor Plan

- _7_7_._!'4-"!:?
J [ L‘
BEDROOM
L]
> d
I
= I

i /

\

Proposed Side Elevation (SOUTH)

This drawing is the property of IPS Architects and
copyright is reserved by them.

This drawing is not to be copied or disclosed by or to
any unauthorized person without the prior written
consent of IPS Architects.

Do not scale from this drawing.

All dimensions are to be checked on site prior to
construction, manufacture of any components and
ordering of materials and equipment.

Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architects
for clarification.

All materials and workmanship to be accordance with
the current British Standards and codes of practice.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all
relevant Architectural Structural Engineers,
Mechanical Engineers, Electrical Engineers and
Specialists drawings and specifications.

/J

Proposed Second Floor Plan NT

Proposed Staircase & Ceiling Section

q ¥
Party Wall
b
g | Proposed Side Elevation (NORTH)
\J‘/[ o —
1l I
2 York Street
IPS
57 - - Lancashire
DESIGN BL9 7AR
Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations
of 11 Pine Street Bury BL9 7BU
A Scale :1: 100 on A3| All Dimensions in Meters
g Ref: IPS/R/11/BL97BU | Date : 12/09/2017
Revision | a B c | D |
SHT 50f 6 Proposal




This drawing is ths property of (PS Architects and
copyright is rasarvad by them,

‘This drawing in not to be copled or disclosed by or to
any unauthorized parsan without the prior written
consent of IPS Architecta.

Do not scale from this drawing.
2ndFL

All dimensiona are to be checked on site prior fo
i and

of any
ordering of materials and aquipment.

Any discrepancias are o be reporied to the architects.
for clarification.

the curent British Standards and codes of practice,
FFL

| ‘ H No Quiwards opening All materials and workmanship to be accordance with

This drawing ia to be reed in conjunction with all
refevant Architectural Structural Enginears,

Mechanical Engineers, Electrical Engineers and
RS ] Specialists drawings and specificationa,

| I 1 ||—||—n|| lr- <8

| S e s S — T "
Proposed Rear Elevation Proposed Rear Elevation Proposed Side Elevation (SOUTH)

REAR YARD ’

Proposed New House Existing House No 13 Existing House No 15
Proposed Front Elevation

Party Wall I PS éuYr;Jrk Street
Lancashire
DESIGN BL8 7AR

Proposed Floor Plan and Elevations inci Boundary
of 11 Pine Street Bury BL9 7BU

Scale :1: 100 on A3 | Al Dimensions in Meters
Ref:: IPS/R/11/BLO7BU Date : 12/09/2017

Proposed Side Elevation (NORTH) Revison| + |+ | < [ o |
roposed Side Elevation HT 6 of P I
Proposed Ground Floor Plan SHT 6 of 6 I roposal

l

FRONT GARDEN




Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington ltem

Applicant: Mr Robert Crosbie

Location: Former Hark to Towler PH, 43 Market Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4AA
Proposal: Change of use from public house (Class A4) to 4 no. flats (Class C3)
Application Ref: 62110/Full Target Date: 28/12/2017
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

The application is brought to the Planning Control Committee Meeting with one
objection as the application was received on 2 November 2017, prior to the changes
to the Scheme of Delegation which was approved 30 November 2017.

Description

The building is located on the corner of Market Street and Kirklees Street, close to the town
centre of Tottington. The building was last used as a pub and has been closed for a few
months. The building is constructed from red brick with stone quoins, headers and cills and
a slate roof. There is pedestrian access from Market Street and a vehicular access from
Kirklees Street, which leads to one parking space and a beer garden. The rear and side
boundary is marked with a 2 metre high brick wall with railings above.

A bus terminus is located to the south with Tottington Methodist church to the west. To the
east is a church hall, which has been converted into apartments and there is a commercial
building to the north with car park beyond.

The proposed development involves the conversion of the public house into 4 apartments.
The existing beer garden and covered area at the rear of the building would be removed
and a single storey lobby area constructed at the rear. The proposed development would
utilise the existing openings on the whole with new openings on the rear elevation. The
proposed development would utilise the existing vehicular access from Kirklees Street and a
car park for 4 vehicles would be provided.

Relevant Planning History
47984 - Proposed extension to create draught lobby and smoking shelter at Hark to Towler,
43 Market Street, Tottington. Approved with conditions - 21 June 2007.

Publicity
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 7 November 2017.

1 letter has been received from the occupiers of Tottington Private Nursery School, which

has raised the following issues:

e Parking on Kirklees Street has always been very difficult and is even worse due to the
provision of double yellow lines on one side.

e The proposed development would only provide 4 spaces with no additional spaces for
visitors or second cars and will lead to congestion on an already very busy street.

¢ The plans should be amended to increase the number of parking spaces.

The objector has been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Page 38

03



Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to the
boundary treatments, footway remedial works, visibility splay, means of access, turning
facilities and car parking.

Drainage Section - Further comments will be reported in the Supplementary Report.
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No comments.

Waste Management - No response.

United Utilities - Any comments received will be reported in the Supplementary Report.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development
H2/4 Conversions

EN1/1 Visual Amenity

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

ENG Conservation of the Natural Environment
EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

EN7/5 Waste Water Management

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle - The National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year
supply of deliverable housing land.

Bury’s Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply
position, which is made up with sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as
many sites will take longer than fives years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g.
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential developments.

Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity,
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses.

Page 39



The proposed development is located within the urban area and there are residential
properties to the rear. As such, the proposed development would not conflict with the
surrounding land uses. Appropriate infrastructure would be available and the site would be a
brownfield site. As such, the proposed development would be acceptable in principle and
would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the
NPPF.

Design and layout - The existing beer garden and covered area at the rear of the building
would be removed (to become amenity space) and a lobby area constructed, which would
match the existing building. The proposed development would involve the conversion of the
existing building and the proposed development would utilise the existing openings on the
whole. The two most prominent elevations (front and side) would remain unchanged and the
only changes would take place to the rear elevation. The three small openings for the toilets
would be removed and replaced with a single large window and the rear access door and
window would be converted to a single window at ground floor. At first floor a new window
would be created and the existing door opening would be converted to a window and the
external stair case removed. The proposed development would retain the character of the
building and would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene. Therefore, the proposed
development would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1, H2/2 and H2/4 of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

Impact upon residential amenity - SPD 6 provides guidance on aspect standards
between residential properties and would be relevant in this case. There should be a
minimum of 20 metres between directly facing habitable room windows, which is based
upon a two storey development. A habitable room window is a lounge, dining room or
bedroom.

There would be 12.8 metres between the proposed development and the church opposite.
The proposed development would utilise the existing openings and would not have any
greater an impact upon residential amenity than the existing relationship.

There would be three openings on the rear elevation at ground floor level, which would
relate to bedrooms and there would be between 9.3 metres and 12.6 metres between the
proposed development and the apartments to the rear. This relationship would not be any
worse than the existing relationship between the two buildings and the 1.8 metre high brick
wall on the boundary would be retained, which would act as a screen. The remaining
opening would relate to a bathroom and would be obscure glazed. Therefore, the proposed
development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the amenity of the
neighbouring properties.

The openings at first floor level on the rear elevation would relate to 2 bathrooms, which
would be obscure glazed and a bedroom. There would be 12.5 metres between the
proposed development and the apartments at the rear. The proposed development woud
utilise an existing window, which was previously used as part of the living accommodation.
As such, the proposed development would be no worse than the existing relationship and
would be acceptable in this instance.

Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significantly adverse impact upon
the amenity of the neighbouring properties.

Highways issues - The proposed development would provide a car park at the rear of the
building, which would be accessed from Kirklees Street. Revised plans have been received
that would create a single access point with the cars parked against the building. There
would be acceptable levels of visibility. The Traffic Section has no objections, subject to the
inclusion of conditions relating to the boundary treatments, footway remedial works, visibility
splay, means of access, turning facilities and car parking. Therefore, the proposed
development would not be detrimental to highway safety and would be in accordance with
Policy H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Page 40



Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum number of parking spaces is 1.5 spaces per 2
bedroom dwelling, which equates to 6 spaces.

The proposed development would provide 4 parking spaces at the rear of the property. The
proposed development is located within the heart of Tottington centre and has good access
to public transport with a bus terminus to the side. As such, the proposed development is in
a sustainable location and the level of parking provision would be acceptable in this
instance. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD11.

Response to objectors
The issue relating to parking has been addressed in the report above.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 904/HARK/PL/01, 904/PL/02 and the
development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings
hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. The external finishing materials for the proposal hereby approved shall match
those of the existing building.
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

4, The car parking indicated on approved plan reference 904/PL/02 Revision A shall
be surfaced, demarcated and made available for use prior to the use hereby
approved commencing and thereafter maintained at all times.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

5. Before the first occupation of the development hereby permitted the windows that
relate to bathrooms on the rear elevation shall be fitted with obscured glazing
(minimum of level 3) and shall be permanently retained in that condition thereafter.
Reason. To protect the privacy of adjoining occupiers and to accord with Policy
H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

Page 41



6. The refuse storage facilities indicated on the approved plan shall be implemented
and made available for use prior to the development hereby approved becoming
first occupied and shall thereafter remain available at all times.

Reason. In order to ensure that the development would maintain adequate
facilities for the storage of domestic waste, including recycling containers, in the
interests of amenity and pursuant to the following Unitary Development Plan
Policies:

Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development

Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development

7. The boundary brick wall and electric sliding gate indicated on approved plan
reference 904/PL/02 Revision A shall not exceed 0.9m in height.
Reason. To ensure good highway design and the intervisibility of the users of the
site and the adjacent highways in the interests of road safety pursuant to the
following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan:
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development

8. Any footway remedial works required as a result of the construction of the
proposed boundary wall shall be implemented to an agreed specification prior to
the use hereby approved commencing.

Reason. To maintain the integrity of the adopted highway pursuant to the following
Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan:

Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development

Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development

9. There shall be no direct means of vehicular access between the site and Kirklees
Street other than the existing car park access indicated on approved plan
reference 904/PL/02 Revision A that is to be retained.

Reason. To ensure good highway design in the interests of road safety pursuant to
the following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan:

Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development

Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development.

10. The visibility splays indicated on approved plan reference 904/PL/02 Revision A
shall be implemented before the new car park is brought into use and
subsequently maintained free of obstruction above the height of 0.9m.

Reason. To ensure the intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent
highways in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan:

Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development

Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development

11. The turning facilities indicated on approved plan reference 904/PL/02 Revision A
shall be provided prior to the use hereby approved commencing and the areas
used for the manoeuvring of vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free of
obstruction at all times.

Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan:

Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development

Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development

For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253

5322
Page 42



Viewpoints

12
f
(]
o
=
o
T

Tottington

Methodist

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

APP. NO 62110

ADDRESS: Former Hark to Towler

43 Market Street

Tottington

Planning, Envir

| and Regulatory Services

onmenta

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 43




62110
Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 44



Photo 3

Page 45



9y abed

WASHROOM

BATHROGM
sToRE
KTCHEN we
LANDING
DINING ROOM sTORE BEDROOM
EX!BTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN
BEER GARDEN
YARD
BEER GARDEN g
GOVERED
FEMALEWC
MALE W
LosBY.
DARTRAFEA
STAGE
GANES AREA
BAR SERVICE
EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN
BOILER HOUSE
SEER CELLAR

EXISTING CELLAR PLAN

MARKET

3T

8T

KIRKLEES

USTING REAR ELEVATION

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION { SECTION THROUGH GARDEN)

EXISTHG GIDE ELEVATION

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

0
SCALE BAR
MO AL LEVELS TO BZ CONFIRMED O BITE BY STRUCT. E4G.

o

momr
HARK TO TOWLER, MARKET STREET, TOTTINGTON, BURY - EXJSTING FLANE AND ELEVATIONS

™
TBTING PLANS AND ELEVATIONS.
Py

U044 HARX /PL /01

o
t




Jv abed

AN AN 7%
— S ?E
T F - ¢ N |
—— = = ==
=—F | Vime
— — — — %ﬁ ?:ﬁ' Y  ——

n
_
I
Iill |||| |
i
O

It

L | {C i

T :

— —— " . ForeTE
I 0.9m high brick wall We—=—"o]
to match existing E
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION — brickwork =
PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
|
|
|
- S i |
11 |
S 11 |
g H |
—— Il |
i |
[ ] . Il sight line |
BIN STORE i1 2.4m x 15)9m
O : : |
I '
[ 11 :
11 |
|
g |
|
|
|
5 0.9m high !
electrical sliding :
metal gate I |
O\
O
TERRACE T 2 T 3 T 4
. i i i 0.9m| high
: : : brick|wall
O | | |
— : : :
| | |
| | |
B - | | | .
D | | |
| | |
7 : | | |
: : :
® CAR SPACES | |
MASTER BEDROOM = . ! !
IEII I ;I
il 8 (R J dl (] [ TR i
‘) o
= .
o | — W.C
% LOBBY D BEDROOM 2 ® e we ﬂ 5
[ BEDRQOM 2 | ,—l |
|:| IEI
D n om— 0 5 10m
(]ﬂ @ é__ D MASTER BEDRDOM D ® / D MASTER BEDROOM/ SCALE BAR
BEDRQOM 2 n
wel ]| "R THwe d % E\W=J T o [
° — ) T . | \ [T
ke 33 MASTER BEDROOM [d i 00
00
KITCHEN -
COMMUNAL HALL
o . i
nd

O [O]
D] W.C

[ Ob L[ <

=3
e}

KITCHEN Material Specification
COMMUNAL HALL UNIT 4
Walls - Brick, to match existing
/" J J Render, to match existing

| | | Windows and doors - Painted timber, to match exisiting

O - B2

|| LIVING Roof - Felt / EPDM, to match existing
M | | | — | | [ ] |:> 33 | | I ! | | [ j Fences- Close bordered timber fence
a LIVING 1
— ] [ ] @@l LIVING [ j
KITCHEN % —1 o
OO ==  — | |
00 LIVING ] — E KITCHEN ] ~
H % — % % BEDROOM 2 = % NB : ALL LEVELS TO BE CONFIRMED ON SITE BY STRUCT. ENG.
A ADDITION OF BRICK WALL WITH AN ELECTRIC GATE & AMENDED LAYOUT OF CARPARK 09.01.18 | YSB
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN REVISION| DESCRIPTION DATE INITIALS
CLIENT
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN ROB CROSBIE
PROJECT
HARK TO TOWLER, MARKET STREET, TOTTINGTON, BURY - PROPOSED SMOKING SHELTER
M A RKET ST i
ACCOMMODATION SCHEDULE PROPOSED PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
DRAWING NO. REVISION SCALE DRAWN BY DATE
904 /PL /02 A 1:100 YSB 27/10/17
UNIT 1 2 beds 93 sgm
UNIT 2 2 beds 72 sgm ARCHITECTS
TOWN PLANNERS
UNIT 3 2 beds 82 sgm LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS
UNIT 4 2 beds 77 sqgm

FISH ASSOCIATES LTD

216 ST GEORGES ROAD
BOLTON BL1 2PH

TEL: 01204 532244

FAX: 01204 532288

EMAIL: arch@fish-associates.co.uk
www. fish-associates.co.uk

DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT. CONTACTORS TO CAREFULLY CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. FIGURED DIMENSIONS TO BE USED.



Ward: North Manor Item 04

Applicant: Roston Property Ltd

Location: Former car park of Masons Arms, Walmersley Old Road, Bury, BL9 6RU
Proposal: Erection of 1 no. dwelling

Application Ref: 62129/Full Target Date: 03/01/2018
Recommendation: Minded to Approve

The application is brought to the Planning Control Committee Meeting with one
objection as the application was received on 8th November 2017, prior to the
changes to the Scheme of Delegation which was approved 30th November 2017.

The application is Minded to Approve subject to the completion of a s106 Agreement
to ensure there would be no loss of the car park should the conversion of the public
house/restaurant development not be implemented.

Description

The site relates to the car park of a public house/restaurant, which are separated from
each other by Walmersley Old Road. The car park is set at a lower level than the road by
approximately 1.5m but is itself level and there is a single access off Walmersley Old Road
from its western corner.

The publ/restaurant is directly opposite the site, at a higher level, with No 2 Bentley Lane to
the east and No 216 Walmersley Old Road to the west. There is a public footpath which
runs between the site and No 2 Bentley Lane, which continues along the back of the site
and the rear of the houses on Walmersley Old Road. The land beyond the footpath to the
south slopes away from the site and is overgrown with vegetation and unused.

The application seeks the erection of a 2 storey 4 bedroomed detached dwellinghouse on
the public house/restaurant car park.

The dwelling would front Walmersley Old Road and would be set approximately 1m lower
than road level with 1m high railings running along the back edge of pavement. The
existing access in the western corner would be utilised which would lead into a driveway
and parking area for the development. Garden areas would be provided to the eastern
side of the house and the rear.

The dwelling would comprise living accommodation and an integral double garage at
ground floor with 4 bedrooms at first floor.

The dwelling would reflect the traditional character of the area, proposing natural stonework
elevations with quoin detailing, stone headed windows and timber garage doors. Window
openings would be modest, set in symmetrical fenestration patterns.

Background
Planning permission was granted for the demolition of the single storey restaurant and

conversion of the public house to 4 No. flats, with associated parking and landscaping in
November 2017. The development has not yet been implemented.

Page 48



Relevant Planning History
56276 - Change of use from Public House to dwelling and 4 No. new dwellings (Re
submission) - Approve with Conditions 03/07/2013
59592 - Change of use of former public house to a mixed use development comprising
offices, training facility, cafe, with conservatory at rear; ancillary parking.

- Approve with Conditions 21/04/2016
60489 - Change of use from public house to dwelling and 4 No. new dwellings - Approve
with Conditions 30/09/2016
61787 - Demolition of single storey restaurant, and change of use of public house to 4 no.
flats with associated parking and landscaping. - Approve with Conditions 09/11/2017

Publicity
Letters sent on 10/11/2017 to 6 properties at The Masons Arms, 1 Baldingstone; 175, 179,
216 Walmersley Old Road; 2 Bentley Lane.

One letter of objection received from No 2 Bentley Lane raising the following issues:

¢ Currently have a pleasant view of the Baldingstone hamlet and enjoy the sun on our
front garden and house;

e The plans for the new build are extremely close to the border of our home and would
overshadow our front garden and leave us with a view of a gable end wall, obstructing
our views and sunlight;

e The gable end brick wall is shown as being approx 6.45m from our boundary with just
another 4m to our overlooking window in the front room;

¢ We would have no objections if the building were moved further back into the car park
and moved further down and away from our property;

e The proposed development is over-bearing and out-of-scale for the plot compared with
existing development in the vicinity.

The objector has been informed of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Consultations

Traffic Section - No objection subject to conditions.

Drainage Section - No response received. A drainage scheme would be required, and
included by way of a suitably worded condition.

Environmental Health Contaminated Land - No objection subject to conditions.
Waste Management - No response received.

United Utilities (Water and waste) - No response received.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting

EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

Page 49



Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle for Housing Development - The National Planning Policy Framework should be
treated as a material planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning
authorities to boost the supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and
long term. There is a particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to
identify a rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land.

Bury’s Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply
position, which is made up with sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as
many sites will take longer than fives years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g.
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential developments.

UDP Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing
a proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity,
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses.

UDP Policies H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development and H2/2 - The Layout of
New Residential Development takes into consideration factors relating to the height and roof
type of adjacent buildings, the impact of developments on residential amenity, the density
and character of the surrounding area and the position and proximity of neighbouring
properties. Regard is also given to parking provision and access, landscaping and
protection of trees/hedgerows and external areas.

Supplementary Planning Document 6 - Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties
provides useful guidance in terms of acceptable aspect standards between dwellings and
design criteria.

The development would be located within an established residential area and would
therefore not conflict with the local environment in terms of character and surrounding uses.
There is existing infrastructure in place to facilitate the development and the scale of the
proposal is such that it would not result in the over development of the site.

The site also has the benefit of an extant planning permission for a development of 3 No.
terrace dwellings, whose footprint, scale and massing is not dissimilar to the scheme hereby
proposed.

As such, the principle is in general accordance with national and local planning policy and
would comply with the NPPF and UDP Policies H1/2, H2/1 and H2/2.

Principle of the loss of the public house car park - Permission has been granted for the
Page 50



conversion of the public house to 4 No. flats in November 2017. The consent has not yet
been implemented and there is the potential that it may not be implemented in the future.
Should this application be granted permission for the redevelopment of the car park, there
is concern that should the pub continue to trade, there would no longer be a car park
available for its use.

To ensure the car park would be retained if such circumstances were to arise, the Applicant
has agreed to enter into a Section 106 Agreement which would prevent development of the
car park site from taking place before the pub conversion has been implemented and this
would guarantee the availability of the car park until such time it would no longer be
required.

As such, the phasing of the development of the site would be safeguarded by a legally
binding Agreement and therefore the proposed development is considered to be
acceptable.

Layout - The dwelling would front Walmersley Old Road and due to the topography of the
land in comparison to the road, would be set approximately 1m lower, with part of the front
elevation facing the retaining wall and a new 1m high railings which would be erected at the
back edge of pavement. However, outlook from the ground floor of the front elevation
would either be from non habitable room windows and there would be principle and main
aspects from living accommodation at the rear, and as such it is considered amenity values
of future occupiers would not be compromised.

Access to the site would be as currently exists for the pub car park, which at this point of
Walmersley Old Road would be level and as the car park site is itself more or less level, a
level path and main entrance to the dwelling would be achievable. There would be
sufficient area within the site to accommodate cars for either visitors or the occupiers, as
well as an integral double garage which would be accessed directly from the vehicular
entrance into the site.

A 6m wide garden area to the east, between the side elevation of the proposed dwelling and
the boundary with No 2 Bentley Lane would be provided, with a more private larger garden
located at the rear. The proposed layout plan shows that the planting which forms the
rear boundary of the site is outside the site area and would not be subject to consideration
of this development.

Whilst the development proposes a fairly substantial build, the plot itself is generous in
comparison and able to accommodate the dwelling with ample amenity and parking areas
without compromise to the surrounding area.

As such, it is considered the proposed layout would be acceptable and comply with UDP
Policies H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development and H2/2 - The Layout of New
Residential Development.

Design and appearance - The character of the nearby area comprises a mix of differing
house types, ranging from cottage style stone builds, and detached and semi detached
brick/rendered dwellings. Opposite the site there is also the pub/restaurant and adjacent is
No 2 Bentley Lane, which is a relatively large stone built dwelling.

The proposed development would not be dissimilar to this adjacent property, being 2 storey
in height, detached, stone built and of a 'farmhouse’ cottage appearance. Window
openings would have mullion detailing with stone heads and cills and quoin detailing would
re-enforce the country- style appearance.

It is noted that the development proposes white Upvc window frames, which may be a
slightly discordant feature on this type of property, depending on sections and proportions.
It is therefore considered to be reasonable to include a condition that a sample or
specification of a window type be submitted for approval, along with requiring a sample of

Page 51



the stone to be used for the external facade, to which the applicant has agreed.

As such, the design and appearance of the scheme is considered to be acceptable and
appropriate to this location and would comply with EN2/1 - The Form of New Residential
Development and EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design.

Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 contains supplementary guidance on separation
distances to surrounding properties and is used as a yardstick when assessing
relationships of existing properties to new development. A separation distance of 20m
between habitable room windows and 13m between a principal ground floor habitable room
window and a 2 storey blank wall is generally considered to be an acceptable minimum
distance.

No 2 Bentley Lane is located to the east of the site and would be the property closest to the
proposed dwelling. However, No 2 would have an oblique relationship to the side gable of
the dwelling and there would be no direct interface between habitable room windows on the
the front elevation of this property and the gable of the new build and as such there would
not be direct overlooking.

That said, and in consideration of SPD6, there would be a distance of 13.8m between the
ground floor windows of No 2 and the proposed dwelling at the nearest point and therefore
aspect standards would be satisfied.

The development proposes 2 ground floor windows to a lounge in the side gable of the new
build. However, these would be slimline in design and secondary to the main windows
which would be on the front and rear elevations. The Applicant has also agreed for these
windows to be obscure glazed which would be considered acceptable given their secondary
status.

There are no other properties nearby which would be affected by the siting of the proposed
development.

Given the oblique relationship between No 2 Bentley Lane and the proposed dwelling and
that aspect standards would be satisfied and policy compliant, it is considered the proposed
development would not have a detrimental impact on residential amenity and would comply
with UDP Policies H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development and H2/2 - The Layout
of New Residential Development and SPD6.

Public Right of Way - There is a footpath which runs to the back of the site and is not
within the application area, and there is intention for the scheme to affect it.

Parking and access - The development proposes an integral double garage and there is
ample room for the parking of 4 cars on the driveway area.

Access into the site would be as existing, and given the development for 1 dwelling would
generate significantly less traffic than as a car park for a public house, it is considered that
there would not be any highway safety issues or parking concerns.

The Highway's Section has raised no objection and subject to conditions the proposal is
considered to comply with UDP Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development
and HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development.

Planning obligations - To safeguard the use and availability of the car park should the
public house/restaurant continue to operate, or in the event that the planning permission
granted to convert the pub for residential purposes is not implemented, the Applicant has
agreed to enter into a legally binding S106 Agreement. The Agreement would ensure that
the car park site could not be built out prior to the development for the conversion of the
pub/restaurant site.

Page 52



Response to objector -

There would be a distance of more than 7m between the side elevation of the new
dwelling and the boundary to No 2 Bentley Lane and more than 13m between the two
dwellings. Separation distances would be satisfied and policy compliant. In addition,
the new dwelling would be set to the north of No 2 Bentley Lane and overshadowing of
the objectors garden would not be significantly affected due to the orientation of the sun.
The proposed plans demonstrate that the size of the plot could comfortably
accommodate the scale of the proposed development and associated requirements
including parking and amenity space without compromise to the residential amenity of
the adjacent occupiers. There are a mix of housetypes in the area, and the proposed
development would not be dissimilar in scale to the public house opposite or No 2
Bentley Lane.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Minded to Approve

Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered Site Layout as Existing R-0458-102;
Proposed site layout R-0458-100 Revision B; Proposed floor plans and elevations
R-0458-101; Setting Out with Adjacent Property R-0458-104 and the development
shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. No development shall commence unless and until:-

e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

e Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

e Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination

and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory

development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework

Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where

Page 53



remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

No development shall commence unless and until surface water drainage
proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme should be in accordance with the submitted Surface Water
Sustainable Drainage Assessment and must be based on the hierarchy of
drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in
accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage
Systems (March 2015). This must include assessment of potential SUDS options
for surface water drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support
the chosen solution. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also
be provided. The approved scheme only shall be implemented prior to first
occupation and thereafter maintained.

Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact. To promote sustainable
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 -
Waste Water Management and chapter 10 - Meeting the challenge of climate
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF.

Before the first occupation of the development hereby approved, the two windows
to the lounge on the ground floor of the eastern elevation of the dwelling hereby
approved shall be fitted with obscured glazing and shall be permanently retained
in that condition thereafter.

Reason. To protect the privacy of adjoining occupiers and to accord with Policies
H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development and EN1/2 - Townscape and
Built Design and Supplementary Planning Document 6 - Alterations and
Extensions to Residential Properties.

Details/samples of the materials including the stone and window frame materials to
be used in the external elevations, together with details of their manufacturer,
type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority before the development is commenced. Only the approved materials and
details shall be used for the construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policies H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development and EN1/2 -
Townscape and Built Design.

No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic
Management Plan’' (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following:

e Access route for construction traffic from the highway network;

e Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements;

e Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage
of the site;

e Parking on site or on land within the applicant's control of operatives' and
construction vehicles together with storage on site of construction materials.

Page 54



10.

11.

12.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the
measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the
duration of the construction period. The areas identified shall not be used for any
other purposes other than the turning/parking of vehicles and storage of
construction materials

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact
of the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and
material storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period, in the
interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policy
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design.

No development shall commence unless and until details have been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority to cover measures to ensure that all
mud and other loose materials are not carried on the wheels and chassis of any
vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the
operations. The approved details shall be implemented and maintained thereafter
during the period of construction.

Reason. - Information not submitted at application stage. To ensure that the
adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works
operations pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

The dwelling hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the
footway improvements on the southerly side of Walmersley Old Road, rebuilt
retaining wall and pedestrian guardrailing indicated on approved plan reference
R-0458-100 Revision B have been implemented in full.

Reason. To ensure good highway design in the interests of pedestrian safety
pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New
Residential Development and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

The turning facilities indicated on the approved plan reference R-0458-100
Revision B shall be provided before the development is brought into use and shall
subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at all times.

Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan
Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development and HT2/4 - Car
parking and New Development.

The car parking indicated on the approved plan reference R-0458-100 Revision B
shall be surfaced, demarcated and made available for use prior to the dwelling
hereby approved being first occupied and thereafter maintained at all times.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of

road safety pursuant to policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development and HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161

253-5320

Page 55



Viewpoints

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN
APP. NO 62129 J

ADDRESS: Former Masons Arms car park, /
Walmersley Old Road, Bury

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 56



62129
Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 57



Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 58



Photo 5

Photo 6

Page 59



Photo 7

Page 60



T9 abed

PROPOSED SITE LAYQUT 10
Refer to drawing R-0458- 101 for proszecl floor plans and elevations

and estend a

New steel g 08 new
stonc retanng wall wih coprng
Referto enlangod detsl

Tabz down evsting stone wal
shown

‘Thia crawing I3 the property of Equilbium Archltects and ooprights

Equliborium Aschitets.
e 0000t v
wtddoata e mpes Do ot cale fom s anng.
o 17%0.0
lsmaicomion  f Al @anshons are 0 be checked on ise pior 0 consruclon,
a0tk firoset

1Zmndsvi s 10un

0Ty ¥

€500
et
1100mm

L
ey

Biltsh Standanda and codas of pacice.

TYPICALFENCE DETAILix Spocilsts daios e st

Featean

+ floo level 160.250

< PROPOSED SECTION LINE 2.0

feapan

< + Hoor lewe! 160.250

. PROPOSED SECTION LINE | 10

e, e, s s armn
o=y ormn
cescreon e wE

7--

non

MR. D BRUNNER

s | woaa Proposed Housa on Former Caspark at Mason Arms
T A Walmersley Old Rd, Bury, BL9 6RU
[ CRAG
Proposed Sfte Layout

- “was |odezn| |
[’ o & T ™%

* &
SITELOCATION PLAN v equilioriurm

425407 Wamenday Road fury Lancapis 21955 TUVGATYY 2077 £ IO TVY 208



MATERIALS SPECIFICATION:-

Roof - Concrete interlocking roof tiles
Walls - Natural stonework

Windows & Doors - White PVCu
Garage Door - timber panelled door

Stone heads, jambs, cills and mullions to
||l| ||l||—!—||i| openings as indicated

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

[0 [

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

—= = AVAVAN
:
LOUNGE DINING UTILITY [ﬂmﬂﬂ] BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM 4

 — 1
QO w

LOUNGE
] | 1/
E@@ \ \ |
©6 | | 1
| | -
KITCHEN DOUBLE GARAGE \ \ BEDROOM 2 _____ BATHROOM :@ ENE)UITE\ BEDROOM |
| | -
| |
| | @ Q
| | "
E: === | | ===\ ==
| |
ENTRANCE } }
PORCH L ]
—=—g=—0=—\ === == rT —=r—0—0=—\

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
Refer to Drawing R-0458- 100 for Proposed Site Layout

Page 62

NOTES

This drawing is the property of Equilibrium Architects and copyright is
reserved by them. This drawing is not to be copied or disclosed by or
to any unauthorised persons without the prior written consent of
Equilibrium Architects.

Do not scale from this drawing.

All dimensions are to be checked on site prior to construction,
manufacture of any components and ordering of materials and
equipment.

Any discrepencies are to be reported to the architect for clarification.

All materials and workmanship to be in accordance with the current
British Standards and codes of practice.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant Architectural,
Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers, Electrical Engineers and
Specialists drawings and specifications.

REV  DESCRIPTION CHECK DATE

CLIENT

MR. D BRUNNER

PROJECT

Proposed House on Former Carpark at Masons Arms
Walmersley Old Rd, Bury, BL9 6RU

DRAWING

Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations

SCALE DATE DRAWN CHECKED
1:100 @ A2 | October 2017 MH

DRAWING NO. CAD REFERENCE NO. REVISION
R-0458-101

435-437 Walmersley Road Bury Lancashire BL9 5EU T: 0161 797 2077 F : 0161 797 2088
info@equilibriumarchitects.co.uk  www.equilibriumarchitects.co.uk




)
por [T
'al& =TL161.89] Soi

7

BENTLEY LANE

161.68

gt -_e

TARMA(

—
Ketb

e ——
2
Q-

FIRST FLOOR
HABITABLE WINDOW

Site Layout

Page 63

HOTES

This drawing is the property of Equilibrium Architects and copyright is
reserved by them. This drawing is not to be copied or disclosed by or
to any unauthorised persons without the prior written consent of
Equilibrium Architects.

Do not scale from this drawing.

All dimensions are to be checked on site prior to construction,
manufacture of any components and ordering of materials and
equipment.

Any discrepencies are to be reported to the architect for clarification.

All materials and workmanship to be in accordance with the current
British Standards and codes of practice.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant Architectural,
Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers, Electrical Engineers and
Specialists drawings and specifications.

REV  DESCRIPTION CHECK DATE

CLIENT

MR. D BRUNNER

PROJECT

Proposed House on Former Carpark at Masons Arms
Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6RU

DRAWING

Setting Out With Adjacent Property

SCALE DATE DRAWN CHECKED
1:200 @ A3 | Nov 2017 AGW

DRAWING NO. CAD REFERENCE NO. REVISION
R-0458-104

vililoriunn

ARCHITECGCTS

435-437 Walmersley Road Bury Lancashire BL9 5EU T: 0161797 2077 F: 0161797 2088
info@equilibri itects.co.uk  www.equilibri i ©0.uk




Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington ltem 05

Applicant: Mr Andrew Beale
Location: 1 Green Street, Walshaw, Bury, BL8 3BJ

Proposal: Change of use of land to extend garden/residential curtilage and erection of detached
garage with fence/gate to match existing

Application Ref: 62148/Full Target Date: 22/01/2018
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

Green Street, a relatively narrow cul-de-sac of detached houses close to the centre of
Walshaw Village. The proposal relates to a rectangular plot of land (123sqm) at the rear of
an existing single residential development site which was formerly the side garden of the
adjacent dwellinghouse known as Green Bank. The site lies between the garden of No.22
Hall Street, to the south, and the school playing field to the north.

The proposal is to change the use of the rectangular plot of land, measuring 124sgm, to
form an extension of the existing garden ground and erect a flat roof, detached garage
adjacent to the shared garden boundary with No.22 Hall Street.

The land historically was part of the adjacent playing field until the school erected the
existing boundary fence and cut the plot off from the main playing field. Subsequently the
plot, which was effectively 'landlocked', was used informally by an adjacent resident - see
objection below. The applicant purchased the land from the Council in March 2017 with a
condition that the Japanese Knotweed be cleared.

The garage, situated at the back of the driveway, would measure L6m by W5m with a
maximum height of 2.3m. It would be finished in a cream render to match the new house
which is almost completed, with a stone coping around the roof and a timber garage door.

Relevant Planning History

58820 - Erection of 1 no. new dwelling with driveway within the garden area of Green Bank
with an additional communal car parking space to Green Street and new driveway adjacent
Greenbank Cottage - Approved 02/09/2015

Publicity
The following neighbours were notified by letter dated 27/11/17: Green Bank, 22-26(even)
Hall Street, 2-6(even) Neston Street, Walshaw C of E Primary School.

One objection received from adjacent resident (no address given).

My family used the land for 50 years until the new greedy owner of Greenbank moved in. |
have been forced off land as he didn't want a disabled person rescuing animals and wildlife
and growing vegetables for the use of my village at no cost. | think its ridiculous that he can
get away with this and | don't see how the council can consider letting him take it over. | lost
everything because of him. Why don't the council look after the people that are here not just
the selfish ones that have money?

The objector has been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Page 64



Consultations

Traffic Section - No objection.
Drainage Section - No objection.
Environmental Health - No objection.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

H2/3 Extensions and Alterations

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
EN9 Landscape

EN7 Pollution Control

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Use - The historic use of the land, as part of the school playing field, has clearly been
abandoned. The incorporation of the land into the garden of the new house, currently being
constructed, is considered an appropriate option in terms of use given that there are
gardens immediately adjacent.

Visual amenity - The incorporation of the land into domestic garden does not raise any
serious visual amenity issues. The garage and a small section of fencing are the only
structures visible from Green Street and these, set well back into the site, would not be
significant within the streetscape. The new garage would have a flat roof to a maximum
height of 2.3m which is slightly above the existing boundary fences. Although the
neighbours are set down slightly from the site, the impact of the new build would not be so
detrimental as to warrant refusal. The proposal complies with UDP Policies EN1/2
Townscape and Built Design and H2/3 Extensions and Alterations.

Residential amenity - The land is for domestic purpose and there are no serious residential
amenity issues arising from this use or the position and scale of the garage. As such, in
terms of residential amenity, the proposal complies with UDP Policy H2/3 Extensions and
Alterations.

Access and parking - The new garage would increase parking provision within the site and
the proposal complies with UDP Policy. As such there are no objections from the Highways
Section. The proposal complies with Policy H2/3 Extensions and Alterations in relation to
parking and access.

Knotweed - The plot has evidence of knotweed and it would be appropriate to attach a
condition requiring this to be treated.

Neighbour Representations - The objector clearly does not agree with the Council selling
the plot to the applicant. However this was not a planning issue, but the ‘'use’ of the land as
garden, is. Although it is understandable that the objector is aggrieved at having to give up
using the land for his own purposes, the use of the land as garden ground to an adjacent
landowner is considered acceptable.

Page 65



Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to Existing site plan, proposed site plan 01, garage plan and
elevations PL009/21 and the development shall not be carried out except in
accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. Prior to commencement of development the finished floor level for the proposed
garage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Only the approved floor level shall be implemented.

Reason. Details have not been submitted and In the interests of visual amenity
pursuant to UDP Policy H2/3 Extensions and Alterations.

4. Prior to any domestic use commencing full details of a timetabled scheme for the
eradication and/or control of Japanese Knotweed (Fallonica Japonica, Rouse
Decraene, Polygonum Cuspidatum) and Himalayan Balsam (Impatiens
Glandulifera) is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented in full.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of
Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan Balsam in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 -
Landscape and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

Page 66



Viewpoints

Christ C
Aided P

Gardens White Horse Hotel

(PH)

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN
APP. NO 62148

ADDRESS: 1 Green Street
Walshaw

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 67




62148
Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 68



Photo 3

Page 69



0/ abed

Existing
Shed

EXISTING SITE PLAN

SCALE: 1:1250
" Drawn by: AJB
26.11.17

BATE s

e i e e T e ey
T, DI i OV 738 SVDT I it AP { AT .V ol MY




T/, abed

PROPOSED
GARAGE

SCALE: 1:1250
Drawn by: AJB
26.11.17

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

FROFOCED TPLIT OF PLOT AT 2 GREEN STREET,
WALSHAW

CLEXT KA, WAL

o e Lo
cALR 1
DR Y o

nam wmie

TP T G A DRANI, Wt WP AL G e Rl W e i, e UV GhA T
DU T BN O TV, 5 S P At MO VAP A% ¢ TR LAY




2/ abed

/ I
v,
y -
, J
il ;
£ /
.’I. 7
/ '
e
F .1'
.J'J i
/ i
' 1
/ )
J J
/ 7
7
/ /
£ o
H (/
/ V
4 /
} 4
| rd
1
~
)'.
~
,
\\
.
\
\\.
\
.
N

- N
GREEN STREET,
WALSHAW, %,
BURY ‘

CLIENT NAME: BEALE | S
DWG NO: PLOOGI21 |
/ ,
SCALE: 1140 »
DRAWN BY: ,’/ GF S
/ y "
DATE: 2107 P A

GOPYRIGHT OF THIS CRAWING RELAINS #1TH THE ARGITECT, 117 DRAWING, WORK TO FIGURED -

; DONOT ScALE FROM
= | DN, cHEc AL DIVENSIONS 4 STE N THE EVENT OF ANY DISGREPANGY B FER GLERY T0 THE ARGHTEGTS, ™,




¢ abed

ST SIS IE KT AT
CER TR TSR B

TROU I NIRRT YD)
W IR

FRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

TTEDEETICNE, W P2 STTEW.

/l FTCHE N YO N W

Neighbours gardens approx.

750mm lower.

PLAN VIEW /

U AR ST TN CTA
WS MATEM NAM WA

PROPOSED GARAGE
GREEN STREET,
WALSHAW,

BURY

LT i WK
O An
R IR
Lo oF
DATE ooty



v/ abed

S0UTH

128150

53300

58400

lead dormer
Checks
ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION
6965.0
52350 i
EIETR)
|
KITCHEN |
' & BEDROOM 3
~ ) gl
q b Eh
DINING § < 1
:>.\ I
7 \ {
; |
g vt
B \\\ 1 -~
21000 1 : /I
~ |
o H t}Amkzo\M
. gl HALL |
- \ STORE
~ R )
° ~ , |
we AN / Y5 TE
v - |
42350 3!
! R ‘\\
~/ | <
\ e
. s S !
-~ 2 Y
LOUNGE : P \‘ g zlzs.o
=~ |
§  shor e | B
2 \ DREJSING,~
| ’
|
27500 :
7865.0

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR

EAST ELEVATION

LANDING

MASTER BEDI

4874.0

PLAN

o
&
§
=
S
4574.0

M

______§________

47800

~
ay Greenbark.
W
ar
~
| o M
[ ey A
& T
e,
Qr
| §
50.500
| -
¥
| 50, f <
- — — 4
hT
49.660
g B
! 505 +§
‘ ’
o

Har;
69 g ke
Shed
|

—_—
1
|

N fl +49.610 [
istadng

K

<@

1:200 SCALE PROPOSED SITE

4851 +

PLAN

PLANNING

LN lw-nuun lmnn

R-0358-04

TehiTReTe

Equiriom Archilects.
Do ot scals o, s draving.
equipment.
Bl Standards i codes ofracka.
Spedaiatscrawbiss ond spectcaton.
|
|
v 1
o |
-]
i
N
- _ L
i
|
|
|
- -—— =
!
|
P o oo
aon
A BEALEESQ
Greenbank, Graan Stresl,
Walshaw,
Floor Plans and Elevatons
s wr o w0
150 QA1 |Anmzms| AGW l

+ 1



Agenda Item 4a

BURY COUNCIL
DEPARTMENT FOR RESOURCES AND REGULATION

PLANNING SERVICES

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
23 January 2018

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page 75




Item:01

Land at western end of Watkins Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DS
Application No. 62007
Erection of 1 no. new dwelling and two detached garages

Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to
access crossings, construction traffic management plan, measures to prevent mud
from passing onto the highway, turning facilities and car parking.

Drainage Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to
surface water drainage.

Publicity
1 letter has been received from the occupiers of 34 Sheepfoot Lane, which has raised
the following issues:

e We are unable to attend the committee meeting. Please ensure all committee
members will review these objections.

e The development is out of context to its surrounding environment.

e The agent refers to an e-mail sent by the planning officer, details of which have
not been uploaded to the planning portal for us to see. Why is this? All
correspondence should be made available to the public.

e The strip of land adjoins the rear gardens on Sheepfoot Lane, which provided a
green screen. The proposed development removes this. What is the boundary
treatment at the Sheepfoot Lane boundary?

e There are no other houses on this side of Watkins Drive - out of place.

e 3 garage spaces have been provided for 1 dwelling. Why?

e Part of the proposed dwelling will be in RPA zones? How will the gardens to
Sheepfoot Lane be maintained? What is the boundary treatment? How will we
gain access for repairs?

e The proposed site is below our garden, therefore all surface water will be directed
onto the proposed site.

e The proposal would overlook the rear gardens on Sheepfoot lane and would
invade our privacy. Side bedroom windows would face Sheepfoot Lane gardens.

e The proposal has an impact on visual amenity and conflicts with Policy EN1

e The development does not make a positive contribution to the form and quality of
the area and H2 cannot be applied to this proposal.

¢ Due to the number of trees, the guttering to the house would become blocked and
this is a bad design.

The objector has been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Response to objectors

e E-mails between agents and planning officers are not uploaded to the website, but
can be viewed at the Council offices. The e-mail set out issues with the application

and revised plans were recieved to address these issues. The residents were
notified of the receipt of revised plans by means of a letter.

e The proposed boundary treatment to Sheepfoot Lane would be a retaining wall
with a 1.8 - 2 metre close timber boarded fence as detailed on the proposed site
plan.

e The issues relating to car parking, design, layout and residential amenity have
been addressed in the main report.

¢ A condition relating to surface water drianage and foul drainage is recommended.
The Drainage officer and United Utilities have no objections to the proposal.

Page 76



e Part of the proposed dwelling would be located in the root protection area of the
adjacent tree, which is not of sufficient quality for a Tree Preservation Order.
There is an existing concrete post and timber fence located in close proximity to
the tree, which is on a slope and it is likely that the majority of the roots of the tree
are located in the higher part of the site. As such, a condition requiring hand
digging in the vinity of the root protection areas would be included. The loss of the
tree would be a private matter between the 2 land owners.

Conditions

Therefore, condition 12 should be amended in relation to car parking and conditions
15 to 19 should be added in relation to access crossings, construction traffic
management plan, measures to prevent mud from passing onto the highway, turning
facilities and hand digging around the roots:

12. The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated
and made available for use prior to the dwelling hereby approved being brought into
use and thereafter maintained.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of road
safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

15. Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plan, no development shall
commence unless and until full details of the following have been submitted to and
approvded in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

e Formation of the proposed accesses and footway crossings onto Watkins Drive,
incorporating the provision of inward opening gates and all associated footway
remedial works abutting the site required as a result of the proposed development
and statutory undertakers connections to the dwelling, to a scope and
specification to be agreed;

e The provision of 2.4m x 33m visibility splays in accordance with the standards in
Manual for Streets at the junction of both vehicular accesses with Watkins Drive,
with no obstructions above the height of 0.6m within them;

e Revised boundary treatment abutting Watkins Drive as a result of the above
incorporating wall foundations that do not encroach under the adjacent adopted
highway.

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented prior to the dwelling hereby

approved being occupied.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway

safety, ensure the intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent highway and

maintain the integrity of the adopted highway pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The Layout of

New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

16. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic

Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the

Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following:

e Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements;

e Parking on site of operatives' and construction vehicles together with storage on
site of construction materials.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the

measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the

duration of the construction period. The areas identified shall not be used for any

other purposes other than the parking of vehicles and storage of construction

materials.

Reason. To mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by the proposed

Page 77



Item:02

development on the adjacent residential streets and ensure adequate off street car
parking provision and materials storage arrangements for the duration of the
construction period, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The
Layout of New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

17. No development shall commence unless or until details have been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority to cover measures to ensure that all
mud and other loose materials are not carried on the wheels and chassis of any
vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the
operations. The approved details shall be implemented and maintained thereafter
during the period of demolition/construction.

Reason. To ensure that the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material
from the ground works operations pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New
Residential Development of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

18. The turning facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided before the
dwelling is first occupied and the areas used for the manoeuvring of vehicles shall
subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at all times.

Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the highway
in the interests of road safety pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

19. Beneath all areas of the canopies of the trees excavations and all construction
work for the proposal hereby approved must be 'hand-dig' only. No storage of
materials or equipment or use of the area by vehicular traffic allowed.

Reason. To safeguard the vascular and anchoring root systems of the trees to avoid
the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant to Policy EN1/2 -
Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 — Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

Land at side of 13 Pine Street South, Bury, BL9 7BU Application No.
62015
Erection of 1 no. attached dwelling

Consultations

Additional consultation response received from Drainage stating no objection to the
proposal subject to a condition requiring details of surface water drainage. Condition
10 added. Please see wording below:

10. Development shall not commence until details of surface water drainage
proposals have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme must be based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning
Practice Guidance and be designed in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical
Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015). This must include
assessment of potential SuDS options for surface water drainage with appropriate
calculations and test results to support the chosen solution. Details of proposed
maintenance arrangements should also be provided

Reason. To promote sustainable development. The current application contains
insufficient information regarding the proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the
impact.

Informatives also required in relation to surface water drainage, connection to public
sewers and the need for porous materials for paved areas. Wording for informatives

Page 78



Item:03

Item:04

Item:05

included below:

5.The site is to be drained on a separate system of drainage with surface water and
foul sewage being combined at the last manhole before connection to public sewer

6. Surface water discharge to be limited to existing flow from site less a minimum 35%
reduction in run-off to allow for climate change to prevent surcharge of public
sewerage system downstream of the proposed development Chapter 10 of the
National Planning Policy Framework - Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change,
Flooding and Coastal Change and Unitary Development Plan Policy EN5/1 - New
Development and Flood Risk and its associated SPD 16 Design and Layout of New
Development in Bury. Climate change allowance should be increased to 70% for sites
which fall within Flood Zone 3

7. Application forms for permission to connect to the public sewer should be obtained
by telephoning United Utilities PLC on 08456 020406 or online at
www.unitedutilities.com

8. No building should be constructed within 3m of the centreline of the public sewer
without the approval of United Utilities PLC.

9. The applicant should ensure that any proposed driveways/paved areas (in excess
of 5m?) situated at the front of properties are constructed of permeable or porous
materials. The applicant should refer to Dept. of Communities & Local Government
publication “Guidance on the Permeable Surfacing of Front Gardens” for design &
construction details.

Former Hark to Towler PH, 43 Market Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4AA
Application No. 62110
Change of use from public house (Class A4) to 4 no. flats (Class C3)

Consultations
Drainage Section - No objections.

Former car park of Masons Arms, Walmersley Old Road, Bury, BL9 6RU
Application No. 62129
Erection of 1 no. dwelling

Consultations

Drainage Section - Response received and drainage condition and informatives to
applicant have been recommended. A Drainage Condition has been included as
Condition No. 5 of the Officer Report.

1 Green Street, Walshaw, Bury, BL8 3BJ Application No. 62148
Change of use of land to extend garden/residential curtilage and erection of detached
garage with fence/gate to match existing

Nothing further to report.

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT FOR DECISION

Agenda It@][ﬁy

COUNCIL

Agenda
Item 5

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

23 January 2018

SUBJECT:

DELEGATED DECISIONS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF
INFORMATION/STATUS:

This paper is within the public domain

SUMMARY: The report lists:
Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy
Framework? Yes

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk

Considerations:

Executive Director of Resources to advise
regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No
Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A
Wards Affected: All listed
Scrutiny Interest: N/A

Page 81




TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning
decisions made by the officers of the Council.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-None

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation
3 Knowsley Place

Bury BL9 OEJ

Tel: 0161 253 5291
Email: d.marno@bury.qov.uk

Page 82



Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers EFS7
Between 11/12/2017 and 14/01/2018 L

Ward: Bury East

Application No.: 61957 App. Type: FUL 21/12/2017 Refused
. Jinnah Day Centre, Alfred Street, Pimhole, Bury, BL9 7HE
Location:
Proposal: Creation of first floor with part two storey part first floor extension at side
Application No.: 62112 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
L Land adjacent to 28 Cherry Avenue, Bury, BL9 7NA
Location:
Proposal: Erection of 3 no. terraced dwellings
Application No.: 62145 App. Type: ADV 04/01/2018 Split Decision
. Unit B12 The Rock, Goodall Street, Bury, BL9 0JQ
Location:
Proposal: A: 2 no. vinyl graphics to existing projecting sign
B: 1 no. internally illuminated fascia sign
Application No.: 62244 App. Type: GPDE 18/12/2017 Prior Approval Required Refused - Ext
. 1 Audlum Court, Bury, BL9 7PN
Location:
Proposal: Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension

Ward: Bury East - Moorside

Application No.: 61991 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. Church Inn, 81 Bell Lane, Bury, BL9 6BB
Location:
Proposal: Change of use from public house (Class A4) to 6 no. residential apartments (Class C3)
Application No.: 62106 App. Type: FUL 20/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. Freedom Church, Link House, 35 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 5AE
Location:
Proposal: Change of use of 2 no. first-floor offices from D1 (non-residential institutions) to A2 (financial
and professional services)
Application No.: 62161 App. Type: LDCP 11/12/2017 Lawful Development
L 10 West Drive, Bury, BL9 5DN
Location:
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for proposed single storey side and rear extension
Application No.: 62209 App. Type: LDCP 13/12/2017 Lawful Development
. 158 Chesham Road, Bury, BL9 6EP
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed increase in size of front loft window within the
existing front pike
Page 1 of 8 12/01/2018

Page 83



Application No.: 62241 App. Type: FUL 05/01/2018 Approve with Conditions

. 6 How Lea Drive, Bury, BL9 5HR
Location:

Proposal:  Two storey side extension and raised patio at rear

Ward: Bury East - Redvales

Application No.: 62171 App. Type: FUL 03/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
L 9 Derwent Drive, Bury, BL9 9LS

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 62177 App. Type: FUL 22/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 44 Cornwall Drive, Bury, BL9 9EU

Location:

Proposal: Part single storey/part two storey extension at rear

Application No.: 62181 App. Type: FUL 18/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 19 Lakeside, Bury, BL9 9TX

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 62206 App. Type: FUL 04/01/2018 Split Decision
. 185 Parkhills Road, Bury, BL9 9AF

Location:

Proposal: Proposal A -Single storey extension at side

Proposal B - Balcony at rear

Ward: Bury West - Church

Application No.: 62013 App. Type: FUL 10/01/2018 Refused
. 215 Ainsworth Road, Bury, BL8 2RU
Location:
Proposal: Creation of new vehicular access revised scheme involving 5m diagonal driveway
Application No.: 62172 App. Type: LDCP 11/01/2018 Lawful Development
L 72 Lowercroft Road, Bury, BL8 3PS
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed use of an existing dwellinghouse for the residential

occupation (Class 3(b)) of no more than 6 persons living together as a single household

Ward: North Manor

Application No.: 62079 App. Type: FUL 21/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 11 Rowlands Road, Summerseat, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL9 5NF
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear
Application No.: 62116 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 13 Higher Summerseat, Summerseat, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9UG
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear
Page 2 of 8 12/01/2018

Page 84



Application No.: 62144 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
1 Hazel Hall Cottages, Hazel Hall Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9UR

Location:
Proposal:  Single storey side extension
Application No.: 62160 App. Type: FUL 20/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. Shaunings Cottage, Bolton Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4JA
Location:
Proposal: Demolition of existing single storey rear extension and conservatory and erection of first floor

side extension and single storey rear extension and attachement and conversion of existing
detached garage

Ward: Prestwich - Holyrood

Application No.: 62104 App. Type: FUL 21/12/2017 Approve with Conditions

. 391A Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1PS
Location:

Proposal: Erection of two storey building comprising of A1 shop at ground floor and self contained first
floor flat with conversion of existing garage at rear to residential annex

Application No.: 62186 App. Type: FUL 09/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
. 22 Heys Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1JY

Location:

Proposal: Demolition of rear outrigger and erection of a single storey rear extension

Application No.: 62193 App. Type: FUL 05/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
. 78 Simister Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2RZ

Location:

Proposal: Single storey and two storey extensions to side and rear with canopy to side elevation

Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley

Application No.: 62018 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
L 22 Charlbury Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OEJ
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear with faceted roof light
Application No.: 62083 App. Type: GPDE 12/12/2017 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
L 28 George Street, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9WS
Location:
Proposal: Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension
Application No.: 62138 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
L 25 Craigwell Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFE
Location:
Proposal: Single storey rear succah extension/two storey rear extension and two storey/single storey
extensions to front and side
Application No.: 62152 App. Type: FUL 19/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 25 Lichfield Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OHX
Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at rear and single storey extension at side/rear; External alterations
Page 3 of 8 12/01/2018

Page 85



Application No.: 62165 App. Type: FUL 13/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
5 Windsor Crescent, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DD

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 62198 App. Type: FUL 04/01/2018 Refused
. 67 Albert Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OLU

Location:

Proposal: Two and single storey extension at rear; Loft conversion with roof extension and front and rear

dormers; New front porch

Application No.: 62210 App. Type: GPDE 05/01/2018 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
. 3 Danesway, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OET

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification of proposed single storey rear extension

Application No.: 62250 App. Type: GPDE 13/12/2017 Prior Approval Required Refused - Ext
. 11 Winchester Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0OLJ

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension

Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's

Application No.: 62149 App. Type: LDCP 19/12/2017 Refused
. 48A Mountside Crescent, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3JH
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for a proposed dormer loft conversion
Application No.: 62154 App. Type: FUL 29/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 10 The Downs, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RB
Location:
Proposal: Dormer loft extensions to front and rear
Application No.: 62157 App. Type: LDCP 11/12/2017 Refused
. 6 Ruskin Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GL
Location:
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for proposed single storey extension at rear, removal of existing bay
window at side and removal of bay window at first floor level and replaced with window.
Application No.: 62158 App. Type: FUL 21/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 63 Rectory Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1BN
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension; Addition of 2 windows to existing ground floor rear elevation
Application No.: 62162 App. Type: FUL 22/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 115 Butterstile Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 QUP
Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at side/rear
Application No.: 62170 App. Type: FUL 20/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 65 Butterstile Close, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PH
Location:
Proposal: Increase in roof height and dormer extension at rear; 2 no roof lights at front; Single storey
outbuilding at rear
Page 4 of 8 12/01/2018

Page 86



Application No.: 62191 App. Type: FUL 20/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
65 Duckworth Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GF

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey rear extension.

Application No.: 62219 App. Type: CON 19/12/2017 Raise No Objection

. Lower Lodge, Agecroft Road, Swinton, M27 8SN

Location:

Proposal: Article 18 consultation from Salford City Council for demolition of the quarantine kennel block,
luxury kennel block, dog grooming facilities, cattery and store together with associated walls
linking the various buildings. Change of use from pet superstore and dog boarding kennels (sui
generis) to builders merchants (sui generis) for the display, sales and storage of building,
timber and plumbing supplies, plant and tool hire, including the outside display and storage of
building products with the provision of a new warehouse building for the storage of building
material products, a new timber storage shed and external alterations to retained buildings.
Retention of the former garage and conversion to a cafeteria /diner.

Application No.: 62249 App. Type: FUL 09/01/2018 Approve with Conditions

. 1 Ladythorn Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RP

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extensions to side and rear

Application No.: 62262 App. Type: LDCP 18/12/2017 Lawful Development

. 6 Ruskin Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GL
Location:
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for proposed single storey extension at rear, removal of existing bay

window at side and removal of bay window at first floor level and replaced with window.

Ward: Radcliffe - East

Application No.: 62103 App. Type: FUL 05/01/2018 Approve with Conditions

. 6 Saville Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4JX
Location:

Proposal:  Single storey detached garden room outbuilding at rear

Ward: Radcliffe - North

Application No.: 62163 App. Type: FUL 03/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
. 9 Cockey Moor Road, Bury, BL8 2HD
Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at front; Single storey extension at rear; Raised patio; Render to all
elevations and all windows to be replaced
Application No.: 62236 App. Type: FUL 04/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
L 46 Boundary Drive, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 6RU
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension to side and rear

Ward: Radcliffe - West

Page 5 of 8 12/01/2018

Page 87



Application No.: 62041 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2017 Refused

. 1 Jackson Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1NL
Location:

Proposal: Change of use of existing garage to hair beauty salon (Class A1)

Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington

Application No.: 62019 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
L Land at side of 18 Chestnut Avenue, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3EE

Location:

Proposal: Erection of 1 no. dwelling to north of no.18 Chestnut Avenue

Application No.: 62064 App. Type: OUT 15/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. Land at 12 Holthouse Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3JP

Location:

Proposal:  Outline application for 1 no. new dwelling (all matters reserved)

Application No.: 62089 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. Elton High School, Walshaw Road, Bury, BL8 1RN

Location:

Proposal: Erection of 3 metre high ball-stop fence within school site

Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom

Application No.: 62009 App. Type: FUL 09/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
. Bleakholt Farm, Bury Old Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO ORX

Location:

Proposal: Demolition of existing kennel blocks and food store building and erection of new kennels,
extension and remodelling of existing cafe building, rebuilding of food store building and
erection of donation store building; Alterations to existing car park layout, provision of 2 new
footpaths and associated landscaping works

Application No.: 62077 App. Type: FUL 22/12/2017 Approve with Conditions

L 28 Heatherside Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9BX

Location:

Proposal: Extension at side with dormers at front and rear to existing bungalow to form two storey
dwelling; Front porch; Render to elevations

Application No.: 62109 App. Type: FUL 14/12/2017 Approve with Conditions

L CD Designs, The Yard, Stubbins Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO OPP

Location:

Proposal: Erection of open fronted storage building

Application No.: 62122 App. Type: FUL 21/12/2017 Approve with Conditions

. 133 Stubbins Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO OPR

Location:

Proposal: Part demolition of existing rear extension and erection of two storey rear extension

Application No.: 62128 App. Type: FUL 20/12/2017 Approve with Conditions

. St Andrews C of E Primary School, Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9JD

Location:

Proposal: Demolition of existing modular building and replacement with new modular building to form 2
no. classrooms

Page 6 of 8 12/01/2018

Page 88



Application No.: 62185 App. Type: FUL 22/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
10 Carnoustie Drive, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9QL

Location:

Proposal: Two storey and single storey rear extension

Application No.: 62212 App. Type: FUL 05/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
. 2 Lime Grove, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO OBD

Location:

Proposal: Part single storey / part two storey extension at front

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses

Application No.: 62222 App. Type: FUL 03/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
L 33 Alexander Drive, Bury, BL9 8PF

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension and garage conversion

Application No.: 62223 App. Type: FUL 03/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
L 359 Parr Lane, Bury, BL9 8PJ

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey/two storey side extensions and garage conversion

Application No.: 62257 App. Type: GPDE 05/01/2018 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
. 15 Kenmore Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8ER

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park

Application No.: 62130 App. Type: FUL 14/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 27 Dales Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7WU
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear
Application No.: 62164 App. Type: FUL 12/12/2017 Approve with Conditions
. 10 Ringley Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LF
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension; new canopy; new pitched/flat roofs and rendering to front and
side elevations
Application No.: 62179 App. Type: FUL 04/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
. 6 Ringley Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7HR
Location:
Proposal: Demolition of existing garage/car port and kitchen extension and erection of two storey side
extension; Front porch and loft conversion
Application No.: 62214 App. Type: FUL 10/01/2018 Approve with Conditions
. 21 Hawkstone Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7PG
Location:
Proposal: Front porch; Loft conversion with front and rear dormers: Conversion of flat roof to pitched
roof at rear and garage conversion to provide additional accommodation
Page 7 of 8 12/01/2018

Page 89



Application No.: 62221 App. Type: FUL 08/01/2018

. 311 Stand Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1JA
Location:

Proposal:  Single storey extension to side and rear

Approve with Conditions

Application No.: 62260 App. Type: FUL 08/01/2018

. 6 Sergeants Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7TS
Location:

Proposal: First floor side extension and single storey rear extension

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth

Approve with Conditions

Application No.: 61463 App. Type: FUL 22/12/2017

Location: 129 Croft Lane, Bury, BL9 8QH

Proposal:  Creation of car park

Approve with Conditions

Application No.: 61681 App. Type: ADV 05/01/2018

. Park 66, Pilsworth Road, Bury, BL9 8RS
Location:

Approve with Conditions

Proposal: 3 No. internally illuminated fascia signs to northwest, northeast and southwest elevations, 1
no. non-illuminated totem sign, 3 no. internally illuminated key seller menu signs, 1no.
internally illuminated double menu sign, 1no. internally illuminated height barrier, 1 no.
non-illuminated exit post sign, 1 no. non-illuminated no entry post sign and 1no.

non-illuminated waiting bay sign

Application No.: 62051 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2017

Location:

Approve with Conditions
Elms Bank Specialist Arts College, Ripon Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8PJ

Proposal: Creation of hardstanding car park for 7 no. spaces, (to rear of 97-107 Heathfield Road and
21-27 Ripon Avenue) and erection of 2.2 metres high boundary fence

Total Number of Applications Decided: 66

Page 8 of 8

Page 90

12/01/2018



Agenda Item 6

REPORT FOR DECISION

BuLy,

COUNCIL

Agenda
Item 6

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

23 January 2018

SUBJECT:

PLANNING APPEALS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF

INFORMATION/STATUS:

This paper is within the public domain

SUMMARY':

Planning Appeals:
- Lodged
- Determined

Enforcement Appeals
- Lodged
- Determined

OPTIONS &
RECOMMENDED OPTION

The Committee is recommended to the note the report
and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy

Do the proposals accord with the Policy

Framework: Framework? Yes
Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk Executive Director of Resources to advise

Considerations:

regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

Page 91




Wards Affected:

All listed

Scrutiny Interest: N/A
TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:
Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that
were upheld.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation,
3 Knowsley Place ,Bury  BL9 OEJ

Tel: 0161 253 5291

Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 92




Planning Appeals Lodged UEDCIW

between 11/12/2017 and 14/01/2018 —— =

Application No.: 61656/FUL Appeal lodged: 14/12/2017
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr Brian Sweatman
Location Land opposite Beech House, Clifton Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3HG

Proposal Erection of 1 no. detached bungalow

Application No.: 61683/FUL Appeal lodged: 15/12/2017
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Split Decision

Applicant: Mr Kristopher Overlunde
Location 20 Prestwich Park Road South, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PE

Proposal A - Retention of replacement windows to side and rear elevations

B - Retention of replacement windows to front elevation

“Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 2

Page 93



Planning Appeals Decided
between 11/12/2017 and 14/01/2018 @:W

COUNCIL

Application No.: 60599/FUL Appeal Decision: Allowed
Decision level: DEL Date: 15/12/2017

Recommended Decision: Refuse Appeal type: Written Representations

Applicant: Miss Laura Bowman

Location: 88 Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9PD

Proposal: Change of use from dwelling house to office (Class B1 (a))

Application No.: 61713/FUL Appeal Decision: Allowed
Decision level: DEL Date: 22/12/2017
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr Stuart Wall

Appeal type: Written Representations

Location: 12 Alexander Drive, Bury, BL9 8PF

Proposal: First floor side extension

Page 94



% The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 6 December 2017

by B.S.Rogers BA(Hons) DipTP MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 15 December 2017

Appeal A Ref: APP/T4210/C/17/3173302
88 Bolton West Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9PD

e The appeal is made under section 174 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991.

e The appeal is made by Miss Laura Bowman against an enforcement notice issued by
Bury Metropolitan Borough Council.

e The enforcement notice was issued on 3 March 2017.

e The breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is without planning permission,
the material change of use from a dwelling house to an office (Use Class B1(a)).

e The requirements of the notice are (a) cease the use of the site for the office use (Class
B1l(a)); and (b) remove all items from the site that are associated with and facilitate the
use, including computers, desks, filing equipment.

e The period for compliance with the requirements is 60 days.

e The appeal is proceeding on the ground set out in section 174(2)(a) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.

Summary of Decision: The appeal is allowed and the notice is quashed.

Appeal B Ref: APP/T4210/W/17/3173304
88 Bolton West Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9PD

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Miss Laura Bowman against the decision of Bury Metropolitan
Borough Council.

e The application Ref: 60599, dated 2 August 2016, was refused by notice dated 17
November 2016.

e The development proposed is change of use from dwelling house to office (Class B1(a)).

Summary of Decision: The appeal is allowed.

Appeal A, ground (a) and the deemed application and Appeal B

1. The main issues are the impact of the development on the vitality of
Ramsbottom Town Centre and on highway safety.

Town Centre Vitality

2. The appeal property is a 2 storey end terraced property on the NW side of
Bolton Road West (the A676), at its junction with Alfred Street. This former
house has been converted into offices.

3. The relevant development plan comprises the saved policies of the Bury UDP
[1997]. Policies EC4 and EC4/1 are supportive of small businesses when of
suitable scale, environmentally compatible with their surroundings and where
they don’t conflict with other policies and proposals in the plan. However,
Policy EC5/3 would resist development for further office uses outside town and
district centres and sites identified for such use, save for 3 exceptions which do

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 95


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/T4210/C/17/3173302

not appear applicable to the appeal proposal. Other relevant policies seek to
ensure no adverse impact on the surroundings, including having regard to car
parking and highway safety. Although the UDP is somewhat dated, | see no
significant conflict with the aims of the more recent National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) in relation to this case.

The NPPF is supportive of sustainable economic development, whilst ensuring a
good standard of amenity for existing and future occupants of land and
buildings. Offices are regarded as a main town centre use and a sequential
test should be required for applications for such uses. The NPPF states that
"Where an application fails to satisfy the sequential test or is likely to have
significant adverse impact on one or more of the above factors (i.e. the impact
on public/private investment and on town centre vitality and viability), it should
be refused”.

The use is regarded as falling within Use Class B1(a) of the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, defined 'as an office other than a use
within class A2 (financial and professional services)’. This distinguishes it from
offices 'which include the provision of financial, professional or any other
services which it is appropriate to provide in a shopping area, and where the
services are provided principally to visiting members of the public’. With a
floorspace of around 80m=2, the development is modest in size - for example,
the NPPF sets a default threshold of 2,500m=2 for impact assessments of such
developments outside town centres. This to my mind diminishes the weight
that would be attached to a sequential test, in that it is hard to see that the
relocation of this use to the town centre would add significantly to its vitality.
Moreover, the appeal site is less than 1km from the town centre and is
connected to it by a major bus route, with numerous services.

Looking at the characteristics of Bolton Road West, whilst the area is
predominantly residential, there are numerous retail/commercial properties
along the same side of the road as, and within 200m of, the appeal property.
These include the B1 office use permitted in 2008 at no.170, which is even
further from the town centre. This was approved retrospectively under the
same development plan policies, albeit prior to the publication of the NPPF.

To my mind, the office use is modest in scale and not incongruous in this
location. It provides local employment for 8 people. Its retention would not in
my view unduly diminish the vitality of the nearby town centre. Accordingly, I
see no significant conflict with the aims of the development plan or the NPPF.

Highway Safety

8.

10.

The appellant has indicated there are 8 members of staff working from 0900 to
1700 hours. There is no provision for off-street parking for cars, although
secure cycle storage is available in the rear yard.

The nub of the Council’s objection is that the development gives rise to on-
street parking and manoeuvring to the detriment of highway safety. The
Council points to a conflict with its parking standards but, rather curiously, has
not indicated what level of parking provision the standards would require,
either for the current use or for the authorised use as a dwelling.

In this locality, parking is generally permitted on the NW side only of Bolton
Road West, except around the road junctions. That is the case here, where

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 96 2


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/T4210/C/17/3173302

11.

12.

13.

there is a parking restriction with double yellow lines running from outside
no.92, Bolton Road West, past nos. 90 and 88, and for a short distance into
Alfred Street. Beyond this, parking is permitted in Alfred Street, although its
narrowness for the first 60m or so effectively limits parking to the SW side
only. It is possible to park 2 cars on the SW side of Alfred Street, alongside
the flank wall of the appeal property. Around 80m or so to the south of the
appeal site is a public car park with 56 spaces, although this was not open at
the time of my visit.

The appellants indicate that, because of car sharing, 5 staff travel to work in 3
cars, 2 staff walk and 1 cycles; shower facilities are provided to encourage
cycle use. The business is not open to members of the public and only seldom
does a customer need to visit the premises. The only deliveries are office
supplies, usually fortnightly. Bolton Road West is a main bus route with 5 bus
services in each direction, served by bus stops in close proximity to the site.

In this instance, this is a location very accessible by public transport and
means other than the private car. The limited car parking demand generated
by this use is during normal daytime working hours when the parking demand
by local residents is likely to be at its lowest. Local residents have pointed to
problems of congestion due to high parking demand in Alfred Street. However,
during my daytime site visit, | observed many vacant spaces nearby on Bolton
Road West and have no reason to believe this is atypical. Therefore, other
than using the 2 spaces alongside the flank wall of the property, there seemed
to me little benefit in trying to park in Alfred Street outside other dwellings
where congestion and disturbance might be exacerbated.

Given the high accessibility of the site by a variety of means of transport, the
limited number of motor vehicles which visit the site and the availability nearby
of on-street parking, | consider the use does not give rise to undue levels of
car parking that might diminish highway safety. Accordingly, there is no undue
conflict with the development plan.

Formal Decision

Appeal A

14.

The appeal is allowed, the enforcement notice is quashed and planning
permission is granted on the application deemed to have been made under
section 177(5) of the Act as amended for the development already carried out,
namely the use of the land and buildings at 88 Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom,
Bury, BLO 9PD, as shown on the plan attached to the notice, for an office (Use
Class B1(a)).

Appeal B

15.

The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for the change of use
from dwelling house to office (Use Class B1(a)) at 88 Bolton Road West,
Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9PD in accordance with the terms of the application,
Ref: 60599, dated 2 August 2016, and the plans submitted with it.

B.S.Rogers

Inspector

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 97 3


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

¥ The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 19 December 2017

by Nigel Harrison BA (Hons) MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 22 December 2017

Appeal Ref: APP/T4210/D/17/3185574
12 Alexander Drive, Bury, BL9 8PF

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant [outline] planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Stuart Wall against the decision of Bury Metropolitan Borough
Council.

e The application Ref: 61713, dated 6 July 2017, was refused by notice dated 14 August
2017.

e The development proposed is a first floor side extension.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for a first floor side
extension at 12 Alexander Drive, Bury, BL9 8PF in accordance with the terms of
the application, Ref: 61713 dated 6 July 2017, subject to the following
conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years
from the date of this decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: Proposed Ground Floor Plan at 1:75;
Proposed First Floor Plan at 1:75; Proposed Front, Rear and Side
Elevations at 1:100; and Proposed Roof Plan at 1:75 (dated June 2017).

3) The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of
the extension hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing
dwelling.

Main Issue

2. | consider the one main issue in this case is the effect of the proposed
extension on the character and appearance of the street scene in Alexander
Drive and surrounding area.

Procedural Matter

3. The address on the submitted plans is incorrectly stated as Alexandra Drive. It
is in fact Alexander Drive.

Reasons

4. The street scene in Alexander Drive is characterised by pairs of similar semi-
detached dwellings, with some bungalows. All are fairly regularly spaced, set
back behind modest front gardens, and in the main conform to a reasonably

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 08


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/T4210/D/17/3185574

uniform building line. The area is suburban in character and exhibits no strong
prevailing character or especially local distinctiveness.

It is proposed to erect a full depth first floor extension above the existing flat-
roofed ground floor extension at the side of the property. The side elevation of
the extension would be about 20cm from the common boundary with No 14. It
would have a hipped roof (in effect an elongation of the existing hipped roof),
and materials would match those of the existing dwelling.

Saved Policy H2/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), adopted 1997
seeks to achieve a high standard of design that complements the existing
buildings, and does not have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of neighbouring properties and the general street scene.

The Council has referred to the Supplementary Planning Document 6:
Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties (SPD). Section 5 aims to
prevent first floor side extensions from causing a terracing effect by requiring a
1.5m set-back to the main frontage or side boundary. It sets out a number of
‘exceptions to this ‘rule’, although none of these exceptions apply here.
However, advice in the SPD should not necessarily be followed prescriptively,
and | favour a pragmatic approach in this case which responds to the particular
local circumstances.

In this instance the proposed extension would be flush with the front elevation
with no set back. As such it clearly conflicts with the SPD. The extension would
add to the massing of the dwelling when seen from the road, resulting in
greater bulk and a significantly wider frontage. However, a substantial gap to
No 14 would still be retained at first floor level, and this would still allow each
dwelling to read as a distinct entity and avoid a terracing effect.

At my site visit | also noticed many other examples nearby of similar two-
storey and first-floor side extensions in Alexander Drive and Montgomery
Drive. Some of these are set back 1.5m in accordance with the SPD
requirement, others are set back to a lesser extent, and others (such as No 5
and No 8) are flush with the front elevation (as in the appeal proposal). I note
another similar extension on Montgomery Road with no set-back, and another
where the set-back was considerably less than 1.5m. Although many of these
will have been approved under a different policy regime and prior to the
revision of the SPD, when less emphasis was placed on preserving local
distinctiveness, they nonetheless form part of, and contribute, to the present
day character and appearance of the area.

10.The Council says allowing the proposal would set a precedent, in that if No 14

11.

was similarly extended in the future it would lead to the uncharacteristic linking
up of dwellings and a terracing effect. Whilst | accept this is a possibility, there
is no evidence that the occupiers of No 14 intend to extend their property, and
I have to assess the proposal based on the current situation ‘on the ground’. In
any event, given my conclusion regarding the effect of the proposal, 1 do not
consider that a harmful precedent would be set.

The National Planning Policy Framework requires local planning authorities to
encourage high quality design. However, it also says policies and decisions
should not attempt to impose architectural styles or particular tastes, but
should concentrate on guiding the development in relation to neighbouring
buildings and the area generally. In this case | am satisfied the proposed

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 99 2


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/T4210/D/17/3185574

12.

13.

extension represents an acceptable design solution that would not materially
harm the character and appearance of the street scene in Alexander Drive and
area. As such, I find no conflict with saved UDP Policy H2/3.

I have considered the conditions put forward by the Council in the light of the
advice in the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance. In addition to the
standard time condition, a condition requiring matching materials is needed in
the interests of the appearance of the area. A condition to secure compliance
with the submitted plans is also needed for the avoidance of doubt and in the
interests of proper planning.

Therefore, for the reasons given above, and having regard to all other matters
raised, | conclude that the appeal should be allowed.

Nigel Harrison

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 100 3


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Details of Enforcement Appeal Decisons
between 11/12/2017 and 14/01/2018

Lol U L

v

Location: 88 Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9PD Case Ref:
0090 /17
Issue: Change of use from dwelling house to office
Appeal Decision: Withdrawn 15/12/2017
Page 101
Date of Report - 12/01/2018 Page 1 of 1



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 19th December, 2017
	4 Planning Applications
	Plan 1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Plan 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Plan 3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Plan 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	4a Supplementary Agenda
	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals

